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Financial Learning
Shapes Your Future

Learn Financial Management

with The Chin Family!
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“Knowledge is power”, especially regarding
investor and financial education. In today’s complex
financial landscape, understanding prudent money
management and investment principles is crucial
for making informed decisions. With the digital
tools, resources and programmes offered by the
Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC),
you and your family can acquire the knowledge and
skills necessary to manage your money and invest
wisely, paving the way towards a more secure and
prosperous future.
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Key Initiatives at a Glance
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Promotion of the IFEC
Money Tracker App

R EREHETER
Educational resources on
anti-investment scams
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Educational resources rSEEMHETE

on Finfluencers Jointly launched the Youth Financial

Education Programme at youth hostels
with the Home and Youth Affairs Bureau
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Infographics on protections
offered by licensed virtual
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Annual dissemination event of
The Financial Literate Schools

Programme 2023-2024
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BEARRXZHABER Digital Financial Literacy Programme for Youth 2023/24
Infographics on Severe — Four-Cell Story Creation and Mini-Movie Competition
Weather Trading Award Presentation Ceremony
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“Lost and Found II" online financial
management campaign
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Mind Space, Castle Peak Hospital Digital Financial Literacy thEC ieneraLManager Ms Dbc|>ra L
shared insights on sustainable
Programme for Youth 2024/25
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“Investment Behaviour
Personality Quiz"

World Investor Week 2024
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Key Initiatives at a Glance
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Promotion campaign of the B X ERTE
IFEC FinEd Hub Invited by the Consulate General
N ) of The Republic of Indonesia
R ER 2003 24 EERSIEE % to promote financial education
B BRI and anti-scam messages to
The IFEC Annual Report 2023-24 - »  theIndonesian community at
received “The Best Annual Reports Indonesia Week
Awards — Excellence Award for
Small Size Entries” by The Hong
o 128
Kong Management Association DEC
BERBRERIEY —
TR DIY HkEE
The Chin Family Money
and Virtues Story Books
and Activities Programme
—Parent-Child Piggy Bank \ Y
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IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li

attended the IOSCO Committee on Retail

Investors meeting in Sao Paulo, Brazil 2 O 2 5
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Online money management
quiz for primary school students
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2024-25 R G R EFFE “The Chin Family Smart LEeERKEBERERY

Presentation and Award About Money” animation Chinese New Year gathering of

Ceremony of Personal Finance and toolkit for primary the IFEC team

Ambassador Programme 2024-25 and secondary students

for tertiary students
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Hong Kong Money Month 2025
“Guard Against Fraud, Thrive With Resilience”

ETFEHERT

ETF animated video series
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2B/ NERIZBMEELLE
Inter-School Money
Management Quiz Competition
co-organised with the
Education Bureau
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Webinar: A Retail Investor's
Perspective on Virtual Asset
Investments

KREBENIBHHER2024058758
Investor and Financial Education Award
2024 Presentation Ceremony
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Online talk: Retirement Planning
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Online talk: Chronic Disease
and Critical lliness. How to Plan
Health Insurance?

2025 Web3gIBAE
2025 Hong Kong Web3 Ideathon

Investor and Financial Education Council
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The IFEC Financial Education
School Programmes Award
Presentation Ceremony 2024-25

SR 2025
Global Money Week 2025
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Message from the Chairman

Financial learning is shaping
people’s future

As the financial market evolves with
advancements in digital technology and social
media, retail investors today have a wider array of
financial products and services to choose from.

In this ever-changing environment, investor and
financial education is all the more important.

During the year, the Investor and Financial
Education Council (IFEC) launched various mass
education campaigns and provided tools and
resources to empower the public to navigate

the intricacies of financial management, make
informed investment and financial decisions, and
guard themselves against financial fraud. The
IFEC team is motivated by the positive impact of
our efforts in the community.

The upward trend in financial
literacy

The IFEC has been monitoring financial literacy
levels with a survey toolkit known as the “Financial
Literacy Monitor”. Designed by the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development
International Network on Financial Education
(OECD/INFE), this toolkit has enabled us to
measure the financial knowledge, attitude and
behaviour of the general population in Hong
Kong.

| am pleased to report that the latest study
conducted in 2024 revealed that the overall
financial literacy level in Hong Kong has been on
an upward trend, reaching its highest point since
its inception. The overall score for 2024 stood at
71.1 out of 100, primarily driven by a rise in the
behaviour score, compared with 70.1in 2022 and
©69.1in 2019.

REENEMBEZET 20242561

The upward trend in financial literacy shows that
Hong Kong is making progress on investor and
financial education. To sustain the momentum,
we remained committed to delivering investor
and financial education to meet the community's
increasing education needs throughout the year.

The IFEC FinEd Hub

Since its launch in March 2024, the IFEC FinEd
Hub (Hub) has served as an innovative platform
offering free experiential learning opportunities
to visitors and organisations across all
demographics, including students, young adults,
seniors and families. The impact measurement
results were positive, with 90% of visitors
expressing satisfaction with the activities
provided and 84% reporting that the experience
promoted positive changes in attitude and
behaviour regarding financial management.

World Investor Week 2024

In support of World Investor Week 2024, a global
initiative of the International Organization of
Securities Commissions (IOSCO) to promote
investor education and protection, we were
pleased to co-host the “Strike the Gong for
Financial Literacy” with Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited. Along with other investor
education initiatives such as online talks featuring
industry practitioners and experts, animated
videos and various online resources, this event
demonstrated our commitment to raising
awareness of investor education and empowering
the public to make informed investment
decisions.



“Lost and Found II” education
campaign

Young people today are navigating a complex
financial landscape. In September 2023, we
launched the “Lost and Found” online campaign
to promote sound financial habits among the
younger generation. Following its success, we
rolled out a sequel in October 2024 to address the
key financial challenges they face. The campaign
features videos that emphasise making informed
decisions on virtual asset investments, effective
budgeting, and responsible use of “Buy Now,

Pay Later” products, while introducing the IFEC's
digital financial management tools and resources.
We are pleased to see that the videos have gone
viral on social media, achieving over 3.3 million
views'.

Hong Kong Money Month 2025

In March 2025, we launched this annual flagship
campaign under the theme “Guard Against
Fraud, Thrive With Resilience” to encourage
sound investment and financial management
practices while raising awareness of financial
scams in the community. The IFEC, along with
our partners and stakeholders, organised a full
array of investor and financial education activities
and provided resources to benefit the Hong Kong
public. We also supported Global Money Week
2025, organised by the OECD/INFE, in the same
month to highlight the importance of financial
literacy among youth.

Strengthening partnerships for
broader impact

| would like to express my gratitude to the
Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau,

all the financial regulators, the Education
Bureau, the Hong Kong Police Force and other
stakeholders for their ongoing support of our
work. Collaboration with our partners is essential
to our mission, as it enables us to develop more
impactful initiatives that address the evolving
investing and financial management needs of
people in Hong Kong and combat the rising
threats of financial scams.

| also want to sincerely thank all the members

of the IFEC Board, our supporters and the IFEC
team for their hard work and commitment to our
mission. Together, as we move forward in unity,
we can advance investor and financial education
in the community and promote the sustainable
growth of these initiatives to benefit Hong

Kong as one of the world's leading international
financial centres.

Victor Dawes
Chairman

1

Investor and Financial Education Council

Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook, Instagram, YouTube and Google Ads
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Message from the General Manager
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Message from the General Manager

A fruitful year in digital
transformation

At the IFEC, we believe that our mission to drive
investor and financial education benefits not
only individuals but also their families and the
community as a whole.

To fulfil our mission, new ways of working need
to be implemented for achieving positive results
in today's digital era. Over the past year, the rise
of artificial intelligence and Web3 development
has underscored the importance of investor

and financial education. While these digital
advancements present innovative approaches to
investing and financial management, they also
pose challenges for the public in understanding
investment methods and, at the same time,
guarding themselves against financial scams.

In response, we conducted research and
evaluation projects to derive insights and refine
our strategies, enabling us to better shape our

communication approaches and digital offerings.

Our ultimate goal is to foster positive attitudinal
and behavioural changes among the Hong
Kong public regarding investing and financial
management.

Digital resources for all segments

Providing digital resources to help our target
audience make informed investment and
financial decisions is one of our top priorities. We
have been continually enhancing our website,
which serves as a comprehensive and impartial
financial education platform for individuals of

all segments. Our website offers a wide range of
timely information and resources that address
various investing and financial management

needs while raising awareness of financial scams.

Resources include online quizzes, interactive
games, as well as toolkits for students and tools
for young people and seniors.

REENEMBEZET 20242561

The opening of the IFEC FinEd Hub (the Hub)

at The Mills in Tsuen Wan marks a significant
milestone in our digital transformation journey to
“reach the unreachables”. People from all walks
of life can enjoy the free experiential learning on
investor and financial education at the Hub, with
fun-filled immersive education activities to suit
their respective needs. We aim to leverage the
Hub to further expand the reach and positive
impact of our efforts, marking a new chapter in
investor and financial education for people in
Hong Kong.

To ensure that our investor and financial
education is accessible to all community
segments, we have strengthened our
collaborations with stakeholders to broaden
the reach of our public and segment-focused
initiatives, particularly for high-priority groups
such as the younger generation, seniors and
other vulnerable groups.

Inspiring the younger generation

In May 2024, we partnered with the Home and
Youth Affairs Bureau to pilot the Youth Financial
Education Programme at five youth hostels. This
initiative uses storytelling workshops to inspire
the next generation in key concepts of financial
management and investments. The programme
also offers online resources and interactive
activities that help young people develop healthy
financial management and investing habits.

We also collaborated with stakeholders to co-
organise the Personal Finance Ambassador
Programme, which trained students from

13 tertiary institutions to promote financial literacy
among their peers in the 2024-25 school year.



Supporting early financial
education

Recognising the importance of early financial
education, we worked closely with the Education
Bureau and our stakeholders to promote financial
literacy in schools through the school curriculum.
With dedicated campaigns and programmes, we
engage students from kindergarten to secondary
school while providing teachers and parents with
the resources to instil good financial habits for
children from an early age.

Focused education for vulnerable
groups

It is important to equip various vulnerable groups
with the knowledge and skills they need to
manage their finances and protect themselves
against financial scams. We collaborated with
community partners to organise tailored investor
and financial education initiatives specifically
designed for seniors, high-risk families,
unemployed youth and migrant domestic
workers.

Uniting local and global efforts for
financial literacy

By collaborating with local and global partners,
we are facilitating the exchange and adoption of
best practices on investor and financial education
for Hong Kong and our global peers. During

the year, we engaged with local stakeholders
through a diverse array of cross-sector initiatives
and represented Hong Kong in our international
network, including the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development International
Network on Financial Education (OECD/INFE)
and the International Organization of Securities
Commissions (IOSCO) Committee on Retail
Investors.

Investor and Financial Education Council

On behalf of the IFEC team, | would like to take
this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude
to our Chairman, the IFEC Board, and experts
from all the financial regulators, the financial
services industry and community organisations,
who voluntarily support our committees and
advisory groups. A special thank you also goes to
the Education Bureau, school principals, teachers
and parents, for prioritising financial education as
an essential life skill for students.

As we look into the future, we remain committed
to being adaptable and persistent in pursuit of
our mission to build a stronger, more financially
resilient community.

Dora Li
General Manager

Annual Report 2024-25
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About the IFEC
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The Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC)
is a public organisation and a subsidiary of the Securities and Futures Commission

(SFC), dedicated to improving investor and financial education in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (HKSAR). The IFEC is supported by the four financial
regulators, namely the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA), Insurance Authority
(IA), Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority (MPFA) and SFC, as well as the
Education Bureau (EDB).

The IFEC promotes and delivers free and impartial investor and financial education
resources and programmes through its education platform, The Chin Family. It also
leads the Financial Literacy Strategy to facilitate stakeholders to deliver quality
investor and financial education to the Hong Kong public.

BH & Our background

REBBIITHREEN (EBREHA) 1201052 Tl ARENR » WH
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We were officially established as the Investor Education Centre,
now known as the IFEC, in October 2012, following a public
consultation by the HKSAR Government in February 2010

and a subsequent amendment of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance in May 2012.

14 REENREMBEZETY 20242581
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Our mission is to equip the public We consult and work in partnership with government
with the knowledge, attitude agencies and the financial services, education and
and skills necessary for making community sectors to identify pressing investor and
informed investment and financial financial education needs among various target
decisions and managing money groups. Together with our partners, we design

wisely. initiatives that help raise financial literacy levels and

strengthen financial resilience.

T{E Our work HBER
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In April 2016, we launched The Chin Family An independent Board of Directors

oversees the work of the IFEC. It
comprises the Chairman, who is a
Non-Executive Director of the SFC, and
representatives of the four financial
regulators — the HKMA, 1A, MPFA and
SFC. It also includes the Education
Bureau and industry representatives,
as well as the General Manager of the
IFEC. The Board meets every three
months to provide strategic oversight
and advice to the IFEC and approve its
policies and decisions.

platform to provide investor and financial
education resources to the Hong Kong public.
Our work includes the following:

Developing mass media education campaigns
to raise public awareness and deliver pertinent
investor and financial education messages;
Delivering tailored programmes that address
the needs of target groups;

Providing tools, services and support for
parents, social workers and teachers; and
Collaborating with partners to extend the
reach of investor and financial education.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2024-25 15



16

HisER

Corporate Governance
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Mr Dawes is a Non-Executive Director of the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC). A Senior Counsel practicing from
Temple Chambers in Hong Kong, Mr Dawes is a commercial
litigator specialising in banking, company and securities law.
Mr Dawes is also a Recorder of the High Court.

Mr Dawes sits on the SFC's Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nominations Committee and the SFC (HKEC
Listing) Appeals Committee.
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B o
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Ms Li leads the Investor and Financial Education Council
(IFEC), a subsidiary of the Securities and Futures Commission
in the Hong Kong SAR, China. The Council is responsible

for the strategic development of investor and financial
education work to help advance investor and financial
education programmes and initiatives, which are designed
to equip the Hong Kong public with the knowledge, attitude
and skills to make informed investment and financial
decisions to manage their money wisely.

She is appointed as a member of the Advisory Board of the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
International Network on Financial Education in November
2022 and co-leads the Working Group on Financial Literacy
and Sustainable Finance. She is also a member of the
International Organization of Securities Commissions
Committee on Retail Investors.

Ms Li possesses more than 20 years of extensive experience
in the global banking industry, ranging from wealth
management to sales and marketing, and corporate
sustainability. Prior to joining the IFEC in May 2020, Ms Li
was the Head of Futures Skills, Corporate Sustainability,

Asia Pacific Region at HSBC. She has also held global
management positions at HSBC's head office in London. She
was the Chairperson of the Community Caring Committee
of the Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2015 and 2018
respectively.
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Dr AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex

GBS, JP
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201810819 E
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From 19 October 2018
Appointment expired
on 18 October 2024

Industry representative
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FREAMASPRERETIHEESEL -

REENEMBEZET 20242561

vV

Dr Auyeung is the Non-Executive Chairman of MTR
Corporation Limited, leading the Board to ensure effective
management and oversight of the company's business
affairs, formulating the corporate strategy, establishing
the corporate governance structure and evaluating the
performance of the Executive Directorate.

Dr Auyeung is also the vice chairman and an independent
Non-Executive Director of C-MER Eye Care Holdings
Limited, and an independent Non-Executive Director of
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited. He
has over 40 years of experience in the insurance industry in
Canada and Hong Kong. Before his retirement in June 2017,
Dr Auyeung was Chairman — Asia of the Principal Financial
Group Inc. (‘PFG'), a Fortune 500 company, responsible for
PFG's overall businesses in Asia. During his time with PFG,
Dr Auyeung represented PFG and its member companies
across Asia in building and expanding PFC's relationship
with clients, joint venture partners and strategic investors,
and assisting in business development across all product
lines of PFC.

Dr Auyeung also actively serves the public sector and is
currently a board member of Bo Charity Foundation (Food
Angel) and a convenor of the Advisory Committee of the
Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project. In addition,
he is a member of the Board of Advisers of Healthcare
Dispute Resolution Centre Limited.

Dr Auyeung was previously an independent Non-

Executive Director of HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong
Kong) Limited, Standard Life (Asia) Limited and Sompo
Insurance China Co., Ltd. He was also the Chairman of Hong
Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy Sub-committee on
Stakeholder Coordination and Collaboration, a member

of the Board of Directors of the Investor and Financial
Education Council under the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, an observer of the Independent
Police Complaints Council Observers Scheme, a member
of the Independent Review Committee on Hong Kong's
Franchised Bus Service and the Chairman of the Council of
Lingnan University.

Dr Auyeung holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies
(Urban and Regional Planning) Honours Degree from

the University of Waterloo, Canada. He was awarded an
Honorary Fellowship by the City University of Hong Kong
in 2013 and conferred a Doctor of Business Administration,
honoris causa, by Lingnan University in 2020.
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From 1 March 2021
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N expires on 29 February

ERAE ' 097
Industry representative

Mr Cheung graduated with an EMBA degree from The

City University of Hong Kong in 2007 and is currently the
Chairman of Christfund Securities Limited. He has over 50
years of financial experience, particularly in stock and futures
trading.

Mr Cheung was a member (Financial Services) of Hong
Kong's Legislative Council from 2012 to 2016 and was re-
elected for a second term in 2016. He is also a member of
the National Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference (10th-13th).

Previously, Mr Cheung was a member of the Council of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (1997 to 2000), the Director of
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Co. Ltd (1998 to 2000), Vice
Chairman of the Independent Police Complaints Council
(2015 to 2020), and a member of the Disciplinary Appeals
Committee of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(1997 to 2000).

He currently serves as the Vice Chairman in the Supervisory
board of the Hong Kong Business and Professional
Alliance, Honorary President of the Hong Kong Securities
Professionals Association, Honorary Director of the Hong
Kong Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Director

of the Friends of Hong Kong Association, member of the
Board of Directors of the Investor and Financial Education
Council, Council Secretary-general of the Belt & Road
General Chamber & Commerce, Honorary President of the
Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Association, Vice Chairman
of the Federation of HK Jiangsu Community Organisations,
Honorary President of the Hong Kong China Chamber of
Commerce, Consultant of the Hong Kong Chinese Banking
Association of Hong Kong, and consultant of Associacdo dos
Empregados Financeiros de Macau.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2024-25

19



HBEa

Corporate Governance

REIF GBS IP
CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement
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GBS, JP From 21 November 2018
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Insurance Authority

IRACEBMABERAR » B2018EESHE
RIGEBEERITHIEE o« thELFENEEF
BETNEEREUCIEFRBEEESESE (2006
F20094F) ; HAIKEZR 2009F201
F) ; BRARE QONE2015%) ; UMRAFKE
EREBEE Q015E20174F) o

RN EEER L - REECHEBERREE
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Mr Cheung has been serving as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Insurance Authority since 2018 after leaving the
Administrative Service. Major positions that he has held
during his career in the civil service include Commissioner
of Insurance (2006-2009), Postmaster General (2009-2011),
Commissioner of Customs and Excise (2011-2015), and
Secretary for the Civil Service (2015-2017).

At the global and regional levels, Mr Cheung is a member
of the Executive Committee of the International Association
of Insurance Supervisors and Chair of its Audit and Risk
Committee, as well as former Chairman of the Asian Forum
of Insurance Regulators (2018-2023).



AER

=

HO Fu Ho, Jonathan

201948826 HE
BREHZE 202588250
B

BEMATBEHIEES
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority

From 26 August 2019
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Mr Ho joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority (MPFA) as Head (External Affairs) in August 2018.
(His position was later retitled Director (External Affairs)).
He oversees a wide range of publicity-related functions of
the MPFA, including corporate communications, media
relations, MPF scheme member education and stakeholder
engagement.

Before joining MPFA, Mr Ho worked in corporate
communication and journalism in various organisations for
over three decades, including the Hong Kong Productivity
Council, Hong Kong Housing Authority, and Cable TV and
Television Broadcasts Ltd.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2024-25
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From 21 November 2024
— )
Current appointment
o Mt i ot expires on 20 November
1%&«/\ mEE’ 2027

Insurance Authority

vV

REEAREEEER (RER) HITES Mr Lau is the Executive Director, Policy and Legislation,
(BERKGERR) © BIRAEHBRIB20FE AT of the Insurance Authority (IA). He has over 20 years of
MR E R - E2024F1IAMARER  experience in public administration and financial regulation.
Al NEARREES (RER) MHEHRA Before joining the IA in January 2024, he had held senior

T}%E%@E%%&Hﬁ%fﬁj %H%EEH&%@%’%%}%F& ’ positions in the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA)
BEEKEE  THETE TEZNRE -
BEREARBEBNKEZEELZLIETFo

and the HKSAR Government. Mr Lau took charge of various

=~ SUbject matters including monetary management, financial
TR & B R TS (2 BRI BRI A IR &0
5 5 W ER i%EﬁBzE\ S | stability, retail payment regulation, offshore renminbi
= pES oo Bl <1
BE R o business as well as corporate development while he was
with the HKMA. His service as an Administrative Officer in
2N A S B AL FhE B [ AR EARE the HKSAR Government covered a wide range of policy areas
+E{] o including health and welfare, district administration, higher
education, transport and tourism.

Mr Lau holds a bachelor's degree in finance and a master's

degree in economics, both from The University of Hong
Kong.
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Securities and Futures Commission

Ex-officio member of the Board of Directors,

Investor and Financial Education Council
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expires on 15 January
2026
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Mr Lee is the Senior Director of Investment Products
Division of the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC).

He oversees the authorisation of retail investment products
and plays a key role in the asset management policy work,
including mutual market access schemes such as ETF
Connect, GBA wealth management connect and various
mutual recognition of funds (MRF) programs. He is currently
a member of the SFC Product Advisory Committee.

Prior to joining the SFC, Mr Lee was an Executive Director at

Goldman Sachs.

Mr Lee has extensive experience in the legal field and had
previously worked at the international law firms of Slaughter
and May, Freshfields and Norton Rose Fullbright, specialising

in corporate finance matters.

Investor and Financial Education Council
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LEUNG Sze Ho, Louis
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|

From 9 December 2019
KEBHNEEHEETWER Current appointment
University Grants Committee Secretariat gégges on & becember
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o
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Mr Leung is the Deputy Secretary-General of the University
Grants Committee Secretariat. He provides support for the
University Grants Committee in areas such as academic
planning, funding, student affairs, campus development and
internationalisation in respect of the eight publicly-funded
universities in Hong Kong. He is also the Secretary of the
Quality Assurance Council and oversees university matters
relating to the quality of teaching and learning.
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From 2 April 2024
EESHMEER Current appointment

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

expires on 1 April 2027

REFB2024F 2B BRHATATREER
(SER) hEER (BEIIRLEE) > asik
BEE - GEETERE - ALER - 1TE
55~ BRI U RSB TIE - RAEEFE
EBRBUIHBE L+ (BUABRHEES) MEKE
BREIT2( c REEF2014EMALERE
EEMRAEIE > WH2017EHEETE o thEBL
A ERTEMNBASEE L  SiEMEs
B ANE o DUNIRITE R - A SEFa] »
REEREBFRTHEBATIEERIEES o

vV

Mr Ng has been the Executive Director (Corporate Services)
of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA) since
February 2024, and is responsible for corporate development,
media relations and public engagement, human resources,
administration, finance, information technology and
digitalisation work. Mr Ng holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree in Government and Laws and a Master of Economics
degree from the University of Hong Kong. He joined the
HKMA in 2014 as Senior Manager and was appointed as
Division Head in 2017. He worked in a number of functional
areas of the HKMA, including corporate development,
external affairs and banking supervision. Prior to joining the
HKMA, Mr Ng was an Administrative Officer in the HKSAR
Government.
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aEE F2021410 819812
SHEK Ka Lai, Clara BaiEIE20274108188
&R
]
From 19 October 2021
E=RRE Current appointment
Industry representative ;é;ges on 18 October
V

Ms Shek is currently the Hong Kong President and Asia
Corporate Reputation Practice Lead of Ogilvy Public
Relations. She has been leading the transformation of Ogilvy
PR for over two decades, including establishing one of Hong
Kong's first social media & content hubs in 2010.

A brand-building and communications veteran, Ms Shek
has extensive experience in counselling the world's leading
brands on their positioning, reputation management,
strategic communications and go-to-market strategies.
Clara was honoured “PR Awards Asia Agency Head of

the Year 2024" by Campaign magazine “Distinguished
Professional of the Year” by the Hong Kong Public Relations
Professionals’ Association (PRPA) in 2014 and “Hong Kong
PR Agency Head of the Year 2014" by Marketing magazine.

Outside of work, she actively contributes to her community.
She currently serves on the Council of Hong Kong Red Cross
and the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups, and the
board of the Investor and Financial Education Council. She is
also a member of the Advisory Committee on Built Heritage
Conservation and The Chinese University of Hong Kong's
Advisory Panel for M.S.Sc in Corporate Communication
Programme. She is an Adjunct Assistant Professor in the
Master of Marketing Programme at The University of Hong
Kong and current advisor of the PRPA.
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The Education University of Hong Kong
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Professor Yu is a Professor (Practice) in the Department
of Social Sciences and Policy Studies at The Education
University of Hong Kong. She has been dedicated to the

field of business education and teacher education since 1986

and, she was formerly the Associate Vice President (Student
Learning) (2017-2020) at The Education University of Hong
Kong and the Director of the Office of School Partnership

and Field Experience Office (2011-2017).

Professor Yu's research and publication cover a wide range
of areas, including competence development, pedagogical
strategies, business education, entrepreneurship education,
personal finance education, gender in education, field
experience and career education. Her teaching focuses on

stimulating students' active learning and knowledge transfer

in the real context through the use of blended learning.

Professor Yu received many teaching awards from

The Education University of Hong Kong, including the
Certificate of Merit of the Distinguished Teacher's Award

in 2003-2004, the Certificate of Merit of the Scholarship of
Teaching Award in 2009-2010, the President's Award for
Outstanding Performance in Teaching (Team Award), the
nomination of UGC Teaching Award in 2017-2018, the Award
for Excellent Field Experience Supervision in 2020-2021, and
the Outstanding Performance in Teaching (Team Award) in

2022-2023.

Moreover, Professor Yu and her team won the Financial
Education Champion and Quality Award 2021 from the
Hong Kong Investor and Financial Education Council, the
Gold Award for Corporate Financial Education and ESG
Leadership Awards 2022 from The Institute of Financial

Planners of Hong Kong (IFPHK).

In the past 10 years, Professor Yu devoted herself to
promoting financial education in Hong Kong. She
successfully led the development of “The Hong Kong
Financial Competency Framework 1.0 & 2.0" for the Hong
Kong Investor and Financial Education Council and adapted
the “US Consumer Education Programme — FoolProof” to a
local online Personal Financial Education Programme for
schools to use. Currently, she is leading a team from The
Education University of Hong Kong to participate in “The
Hong Kong Jockey Club Financial Education Programme”, a
project created and funded by the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust to further promote financial education in

Hong Kong primary schools.
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EERgEHESLHR Board meeting attendance record

HESRRY / GERE
Meetings attended/held

E2E (£F) DAWES, Victor (Chairman) 4/4
PRk (ARASIE) LI Yuen Chow, Dora (General Manager) 4/4
BRfZ gL Dr AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex' 2/2
REENE CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher 2/4
REILE? CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement? 1/3
E=E HO Fu Ho, Jonathan 4/4
2 epfEs LAU Chung Kin, Clement® 1N
= LEE Chi Kee, Trevor 4/4
POSY: LEUNG Sze Ho, Louis 4/4
BRI NG Ying Kei, Archie® 3/4
ARRE SHEK Ka Lai, Clara 4/4
P EEHIR® Professor YU Wai Mui, Christina® 2/2

T EHAE2024F10818BHER
Appointment expired on 18 October 2024
2 {EHAE2024F1A208E R
Appointment expired on 20 November 2024
P EZEREERME 0 EMBAHR2024FNH21H
Appointed as Board member effective 21 November 2024
¢ BEREREERME > EMARRA2024F482H
Appointed as Board member effective 2 April 2024
° EZEREBZR/ME > £XMAER2024F10819H
Appointed as Board member effective 19 October 2024
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Our People

1TREE > RANBEXESE— > BAEEN  Atthe IFEC, our people are united by a shared and

@ > BOWBBEETREEERMEMNMFAAE  meaningful mission to equip people in Hong Kong with

5 MERERBNEENRMERE > BH  the knowledge and skills needed to navigate emerging
HERSRMEB RIS > WEESBRASRIK  financial opportunities and challenges. By empowering the
BREMERSRA O — c BE@mARMAMNI  public to make informed investment and financial decisions,
EETIEMBAE » ERMANERRE S we are contributing to Hong Kong as one of the leading

51 BEFEMBRPENNESMERE  international financial centres. This mission defines a clear

E direction for our work, while instilling pride in our staff for
the role they play in building a more financially resilient
society.

Ve N N

\ / \ J

BEEHRF2024F10 AM2025F3 A S LB RS RERE B T B EEETEPOEE) o« SEESEMaEEN S ERIE - BRI BMRE
710 URIRF B TEVEAL ©

The IFEC team-building activities held in October 2024 and March 2025 took place at Mind Space in Castle Peak Hospital and at
Disneyland, respectively. Both events helped strengthen team collaboration, promote creativity and relationships, and enhance staff

well-being.
e ™
e ™
N\ /
1R2024F128 > REGEFHRFEUNBEGTIE2MIBESR
NEERE o
Colleagues were joined by the Chairmen of the IFEC
and SFC at the SFC Annual Dinner in December 2024.
\_ Yy

REGIRUEREM—EENRERE
IFEC Chairman joined the team to celebrate the
Chinese New Year.

_
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Set Young
Minds

for a
Prosperous
Future

MHFENSTFAZ2IEHRHAEM > &2
IMRBMEES - REGRMUREER
BUMHBEREER > MEBFE—NEIL
RFIEM RIcERIE > e By thid
ENALNEAR > BRE/EHA - ESRK
BIRZK °

When starting out in life, young
people should learn to be
financially savvy and resilient. The
IFEC has digitalised its investor
and financial education resources
to help younger generation
develop sound financial
management and investing
habits. This enables young people
to navigate life's uncertainties
towards a more prosperous
future.
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Public Campaigns and Resources

32 REENEMBEZEET 2024255



REWBEBE TLEERERANARREEH « ARRNETR  HEREESABRERAREMSE
BORERE R (T2 E M E R o

FR o ZATEBRZETEMYERRERBXEEITENELATRIR » HERERIEEE > UK
SIEEEE > TRRERSEBHERESE  WRXABIENEEZHE -

At the IFEC, we offer a comprehensive range of public education campaigns, resources
and digital tools across multiple communication channels in a bid to drive positive
attitudinal and behavioural change towards investing and financial management among
the public in Hong Kong.

During the year, we continued our digital transformation journey to engage target
segments through the IFEC FinEd Hub and online contents and tools via The Chin Family
platform. We also worked closely with the media and partners to broaden the reach of
our work.

BRER HETA
Learning "

. Digital tools

Public campaigns pEREMEEHER
S LIS
Multiple

pEm touchpoints

Corporate fitd -
communications The IFEC website

fasd ey BFEA

Social media e-newsletters

BZEHYIETE (2024F4H18E202553H310)'
The IFEC digital platforms (1 April 2024 - 31 March 2025)’

HBuk B E R B
Website page views

2,650,000+

ML fERE AR

Website users?

1,160,000+

Facebook EEHEBHIE AK
Facebook followers

95,000+

Instagram BHE A
Instagram followers

21,000+

T EBEEEERAIR | Facebook ~ InstagramM&Google Analytics
Main sources of figures: Facebook, Instagram and Google Analytics

. BRIGREGMEEED—RMCERAE AR -

Aggregation of the monthly number of users who visited the IFEC website at least once.
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Public Campaigns and Resources
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GEENHBEEM

TR BIFIEET IR A B RREEER
e o EERARBEALE o R2024F
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FRSSEA HERSE11008 2 ERY -
WHEE RN E B ER1549248 00084 % o

The IFEC FinEd Hub

In March 2024, we launched the IFEC FinEd Hub
(Hub)—Hong Kong's first digital experiential learning
centre—to provide experiential learning experience on
investor and financial education for the public. As of 31
March 2025, a total of more than 19,200 visitors had visited
the Hub®.

Now in its second year, the Hub continues to provide an
array of engaging contents, immersive experience and
interactive games incorporating key investor and financial
education messages tailored for students, young adults,
seniors and families.

Throughout the year, we continued to leverage the Hub as
an innovative platform to “reach the unreachable” segments
in the community. During November to December 2024,
we launched a series of promotional videos, featuring
celebrity Ms Leanne Li, to raise public awareness of the Hub.
Broadcast across TV, online and social media platforms, the
campaign garnered over 11 million video views and 248,000
clicks to the IFEC website*.

o - BREHRZEEMHERERERHNEERTIMAE
9 O /O Visitors expressed satisfaction with the activities offered at the Hub.

PREILRZGEMHETRRENSERER - REMATEMEERTAFEN

84% il ===
(o) i I i Visitors said the Hub’s experience promoted positive changes in

attitude and behaviour regarding financial management.
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 BUBEIE2025F3A31H c TBMBERILR | BERHERBRENBEERABAR > SEERNREAZE -
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: The actual number of visitors, including group and individual visits.
¢ BUBEZE2025F3831H c TBHEBRIHIR | Facebook ~ Instagram ~ YouTube  Google AdskGoogle Analytics
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook, Instagram, YouTube, Google Ads and Google Analytics
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In the promotional videos, celebrity Ms Leanne Li joined us to showcase the interactive investing and money management activities
offered at the IFEC FinEd Hub.

—I/_

B E IR B IEELSE The IFEC FinEd Hub

ik Address: ZEAMRIBH455EFEESWMIEI04=E
Unit 304, 3/F, The Mills,
45 Pak Tin Par St, Tsuen Wan

#8 L3849 Online booking:
www.ifec.org.hk/financial-education-hub

EE Email: hub@pob.hk
E:E Phone: (852) 2394 7822
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“Lost and Found I1” online financial
management campaign

Building on the success of our first “Lost and Found”
campaign in 2023, we launched this social media-driven
campaign—"Lost and Found II"—in October 2024. The
campaign featured three thematic videos that address the
key financial challenges faced by young people today. These
include virtual asset investments, financial planning and use
of credit products such as “Buy Now, Pay Later”.

The campaign also provided actionable suggestions to the
young people with the use of the IFEC's tools and resources
to help mitigate these challenges. The videos attracted over
3.3 million combined views and drove over 174,000 clicks to
the campaign’'s webpage®.

DRIBHIPR ) 52 1 LS A ABSRY
ENAGBREENEIR > SIREFERER
IS > WIRHKEERBMHEE
TR e

By using engaging stories and
relatable scenarios, the “Lost and
Found II" video series resonated
with young viewers while
providing resources in investor
and financial education. L

e

S BEEZE202553831H c TEHIBERIFIR | Facebook ~ Instagram * YouTube ~ Google AdsKGoogle Analytics
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook, Instagram, YouTube, Google Ads and Google Analytics
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World Investor Week 2024

For eight consecutive years, the IFEC has supported World
Investor Week (WIW), an annual global campaign organised
by the International Organization of Securities Commissions
(IOSCO) in October each year to raise awareness of the
importance of investor education and protection. This year,
the IFEC collaborated with key stakeholders that included
the SFC, Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX),
the CFA Institute, the CFA Society Hong Kong, and Hong
Kong REITS Association to offer a variety of educational
resources.

Activity highlights
Strike the Gong for Financial Literacy

On 8 October 2024, the IFEC co-organised this event with
HKEX, the CFA Institute and the CFA Society Hong Kong
to support the WIW. SFC's then Chairman Mr Tim Lui and
HKEX Chairman Mr Carlson Tong officiated at the event.
They also delivered speeches urging investors to take up
the responsibility of educating themselves on potential
investment risks and acting as the first line of defence
against these risks.

The event also featured a panel discussion, “Expanding
Market Connectivity and Options for Retail Investors”. Ms
Christina Choi, Executive Director, Investment Products
of the SFC, along with representatives from HKEX, Hong
Kong REITS Association and the CFA Society Hong Kong,
discussed the latest developments of the mutual market
access programme, and its potential benefits for retail
investors. Videos of the panel discussion recorded over
2.1 million combined views®.

¢ BUREIE202593831H c FEEIEERIRIR | Facebook  InstagramM&YouTube
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook, Instagram and YouTube
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BEFREEIEEAREE ()
REBRZERERMELE (B)
TR RERHERE

SFC's then Chairman

Mr Tim Lui (left) and HKEX
Chairman Mr Carlson Tong
(right) officiated at the “Strike
the Gong for Financial Literacy".

eﬁ/_

REREE - EBXHM - BEELESHE RGBS
HERMOMMSENAREE R EMEBRETE
KREERIR FENR o

Representatives from the SFC, HKEX,

Hong Kong REITS Association and the CFA
Society Hong Kong at the “Expanding Market
Connectivity and Options for Retail Investors”
panel discussion.

-

FAL R REAE LT BN EEN RIEERS » BE
ZETRUE ©

To reach a broader audience, highlights of

the panel discussion were promoted on social
media and online channels.
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The “Investment Behaviour Personality Quiz"
provides users with insights into their investment
personalities and potential behavioural biases.

Investment Behaviour Personality Quiz

During the year, the IFEC commissioned an academic team
from Hong Kong Shue Yan University, The University of
Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University to
develop the “Investment Behaviour Personality Quiz".

This quiz aims to encourage young adults to adopt proper
investment behaviour by engaging them in a short, fun and
interactive online quiz that helps them understand their
investment personalities and potential behavioural biases.
Corresponding analysis and smart tips are also provided to
encourage proper investment behaviour.

; A
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Sustainable investing

During the year, the IFEC continued to develop educational
resources with the aim to help retail investors comprehend
the impact of ESC (environmental, social and governance)
on investing and the environment, and make informed
decisions aligned with these values. Educational resources
emphasising on the importance of considering ESG factors
in investment decisions were produced, encouraging the
understanding towards sustainable investing.

HETREMNHBEEREEREEHESC
ESMeFERE R MTHE o
Various resources were developed
to promote investor awareness

of ESG-related products and
understanding of sustainable
investing.
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Virtual assets

Virtual assets (VA) have become more accessible to retail
investors with the development of new products and trading
channels. The IFEC utilised various media channels to help
the public understand the nature of VA and the potential
risks of investing in this asset class, also reminding investors
the importance of choosing licensed trading platforms to
protect their rights and interests.

Educational resources highlight the protection measures
offered by licensed trading platforms, such as compensation
arrangements and asset segregation requirements as
stipulated by the regulations.

In March 2025, the IFEC co-hosted a webinar with the

CFA Society Hong Kong and the CFA Institute, featuring
representatives from the SFC, the CFA Society Hong Kong
and industry practitioners, to discuss the nature, operation,
risks, and investment value of VA from the perspective of
retail investors.

BB EAERR R EE
M4 o FRFRE RS AR
BHER > MURIFHEERE
BEXZTFANRE o
Infographics and
social media posts
on the nature and
risks of VA as well as
protections offered by
licensed virtual asset
trading platforms.

]
/ I/ . /

Ve N
REEREEAERTEREERENHE
g o
A webinar on virtual asset investing
from a retail investor perspective. \_ J
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Severe Weather Trading

In support of the implementation of Severe Weather Trading
on 23 September 2024, the IFEC collaborated with the SFC
to launch an awareness campaign comprising articles,
infographics and social media promotion.

The campaign outlined the potential benefits of
implementing Severe Weather Trading, and highlighted
the preparations investors should make to maintain
trading during severe weather conditions. These include
understanding and familiarising themselves with online
investing and electronic fund transfers.

FREAERRAL A EEE
X REZEREEBRRS
RRIBATHRZ ZH -
Infographics and social
media posts designed to
inform retail investors the
trading arrangements
during severe weather

_/  conditions.
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Retirement planning

Retirement planning is critical for everyone looking forward
to a comfortable retirement life. To help the public plan early
for their retirement, the IFEC developed various resources,
exploring the key considerations of effective retirement
planning.

The IFEC hosted an online talk in March 2025 inviting
representatives from HKMC Annuity Limited and The
Education University of Hong Kong to discuss how to
prepare for retirement, retirement planning strategies, tips
on retirement investments and building a stable retirement
income. The talk recorded over 900,000 views’.

BENBERKREZGHRN B BRI ERINESE » &
NAFETERARKISEETENRERM

Speakers introduced the use of the IFEC
Retirement Planning Calculator to work out a
retirement budget and make use of annuity
products to create a stable income stream
throughout retirement.

- v/

x/ \\

N&ERBRNBRE N LSRR IRETE] -
REEST A ARINIEIF 5 o

Infographics mapping out the
retirement planning journey to
encourage early planning.

7 BBEZE20255F3831H o FEEIRENR | FacebookKYouTube
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook and YouTube
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Insurance

Health issues may significantly impact an individual's or
family's finances and derail financial stability. In a bid to
encourage the public to build financial resilience, the IFEC
co-hosted an online talk in March 2025 with the Insurance
Authority (IA) to discuss how health insurance can help
alleviate potential financial burden.

Representatives from the IA, the Hong Kong Federation of
Insurers and The Chinese University of Hong Kong's Faculty
of Medicine discussed common chronic diseases in Hong
Kong and how to use adequate critical illness insurance and
medical insurance coverage to enhance financial resilience.
The talk recorded over 420,000 views®.

BREBHER - BERBRERRENE LHEE -
Online talk on chronic disease, critical illness
and medical insurance.

——
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Other investor and financial education
resources

During the year, the IFEC developed various educational
resources, including articles and blogs, infographics

and videos, covering various investment and financial
management topics.

B

Key messages
RSMEEES SUEMEBE T/ ARETFNGR » SEBNETFEEBNER « FREEN
Exchange Traded Funds ETFREAEERETNAE o B4 SHEHSB1E760, 000 ERHS o
(ETFs) Produced two animated videos explaining the characteristics of ETFs,

including a brief history of ETFs in Hong Kong, different types of ETFs
and their role in asset allocation. The videos recorded over 760,000

views®.

8 BUREIE202543A31H o« FEEIRERIKIR | FacebookKYouTube
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook and YouTube
° BUREE2025F3A31H - FEHEERIRIR | FacebookXYouTube

Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook and YouTube
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Tokenisation of funds
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Following the introduction of the first SFC-authorised tokenised fund
in February 2025, the IFEC published a blog explaining tokenisation
of assets and key considerations for investing in tokenised funds.

BRI RaEETE)
HKEX's Integrated Fund

NEGEEESTaMEHTEREENTR » BWARBEREMERTRES
BEH > I’RSERE -

Platform (IFP) Introduced the launch of IFP and its benefits to retail investors,
highlighting the public access to information on fund investment
options, enhancing transparency for investors.

ERIAAT REATEEEFE LA RERS ENRERS > B TESRRE R

Finfluencers

=4 o

Reminded the public to exercise caution with online and social

media investment advice and to stay alert to potential investment
scams.

RIR K R BER

Leveraged and inverse (L&l)

products

RELEERRLRAERIBEEGEFESAREY - EmNESERTS
HRRTE > BrlRERBEEEESE -

Reminded investors that L&l products are designed for short-term
trading or for hedging purposes. Their trading prices are determined
by market demand and supply, which may deviate from its net asset
value.

BEXRENBERRTBRESRENERNH > OFENEERETHNAS
ZERX . ZEMRRESESE -

Published an infographic series on the basics of bond investing,
covering its role in asset allocation, bond yield, credit ratings, and the
various types of bonds.

IEERM EMR
“Buy Now, Pay Later”
products

BRI AN B REERARNE BEE » SETEIRIT S FE
o

Promoted responsible use of this payment option by explaining the
nature and points to consider such as potential interest or handling
fees.
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Edutainment financial learning resources
for children and teenagers

Revamped Parenting Portal

We launched our revamped Parenting Portal in December
2024, offering a variety of edutainment resources for
students, parents and teachers on money management. Our
goal is to make learning about money management simple
and fun by transforming everyday scenarios into valuable
financial learning experience.

With a new interface and enhanced theme groupings for
resources and teaching materials, the portal allows users to
easily navigate the site and find the resources most relevant
to their needs.

CRTIEFIRE) RftfER 48

LRS- et~ TIREE > &
24« RENZERHES T

IEMEEER

Our Parenting Portal comes
with videos, online quizzes,
e-stories, worksheets and
more to provide engaging
financial education
resources for students,
parents and teachers.
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“Why is Money Management Important?”
Education Campaign 2024-25

For the second year, the IFEC partnered with the Education
Bureau to organise this education campaign for the 2024-25
school year so that primary school students can gain the
knowledge, attitude and skills they need to develop good
money management habits.

The campaign featured an online money management quiz
for the general public and an inter-school competition for
registered schools. Over 10,000 students participated, and

8 schools out of the 96 participating schools were selected
to compete in the Inter-School Money Management Quiz
Competition held in March 2025.

The students, parents and teachers who participated in the
final round of the Inter-School Money Management Quiz
Competition stated that the campaign motivated them

to learn more about money management and instil good
money management habits in their children or students.

N

\
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RZE2ANEREIEMBELE The IFEC Inter-School Money Management
2024-25 Quiz Competition 2024-25

EEFEBRNAERFERERRENIRERERIEXETC WHRER/ N2 FEERERN
BEG2E)NERFIEM BB ERRE o

Mr Paul Lee, Chief Curriculum Development Officer (Kindergarten and Primary Section),
Education Bureau of the HKSAR Government, delivered a speech at the Inter-School
Money Management Quiz Competition.

NEERREREMBMNEEE LB/ NEREFIER RS
EtE > BBAEBEHNEE 2 BRI AH
Primary school students, along with their
parents and teachers, took part in the
Inter-School Money Management Quiz
Competition, acquiring money management
knowledge through engaging and
entertaining activities.
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ERLE List of Awardees

TE ZEEEER Tsuen Wan Trade Association Primary School
Champion

o SEFHASRBLSBR Ng Clan's Association Tai Pak Memorial School
Ist Runner-up

= PeRImAE (H74) /N2 Chan Sui Ki (La Salle) Primary School

2nd Runner-up

e MR AI EREALTBR Lam Tsuen Public Wong Fook Luen Memorial

3rd Runner-up

School

BER iEER Evangel College

Merit TEIEREEL/NE Hoi Pa Street Government Primary School
REBHFIF/ NS Po Leung Kuk Tin Ka Ping Primary School
RE=[Ter =L/ N2 TWGHSs Ko Ho Ning Memorial Primary School

BRERGITRE REBARFA/NE Po Leung Kuk Tin Ka Ping Primary School

The Best Cheering
School

-

BRBLNRR2HAKLEBEVHERRE/NEEED > EBTRRNERL -
Awardees with their parents had an exciting time participating in an experiential training activity at the IFEC FinEd Hub.

_—_————— - —
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Animation series and toolkits for students

In March 2025, we developed two additional episodes in
“The Chin Family Smart About Money” series. In addition
to messages about online game spending, support for

pop idols and cybersecurity, the new episodes focus

on prudent money management habits, as well as
understanding the basics of cryptocurrencies and virtual
assets. Targeted at primary and secondary school students,
the series encourages a positive attitude towards money
management.

After watching the videos, students can complete the
supplementary toolkits for a better understanding of the
concepts. Parents were also encouraged to discuss these
money topics with their children at home. The two new
episodes recorded more than 5 million video views'™, and
around 150,000 sets of toolkits were delivered to over 500
primary schools in the 2024-25 school year.

e N N
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NBRPREERE LERARESGERESHEMTS - {
Primary and secondary school students used our \\\ _ |
toolkit to learn money management concepts T /
during classes. T
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© BIREIE202553A31H o FEBEIBRERIR | Facebook * Instagram&YouTube
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook, Instagram and YouTube
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Chinese New Year campaign

During the Chinese New Year, we promoted our fun-filled
festive online games and Laisee Money Budget Planner,
which encourage parents to induce discussions and guide
their children on managing money.

Through our interactive tools and games, children can learn
about counting money, making payments and allocating
money wisely, while creating their personalised red couplets.

EMEZTFERBHNENSIRNEEE > B(tARSEEN
HEHRE o

We turned children’s joy and excitement during
the Chinese New Year into a valuable teaching
opportunity for parents.
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57 I8 H1i82025
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% o SEMERES SRR > BlERK] >
EENF2025FE3817HEIB2IAE AL
BT o

HFELEFEREES > NMEEREENR
ROERHENEMBEER  UREAFE
—URYERIBES] ©

H2025F38 » WIS REE)

M ER— I EIRRRES ©

In March 2025, we supported GMW to promote
financial literacy among young people.

-r_— J

Global Money Week (GMW) 2025

We supported GMW, an annual campaign launched by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
International Network on Financial Education (OECD/INFE),
to raise awareness of financial literacy among young people.
This year, the campaign was held globally from 17 to 23
March 2025, under the theme “Think before you follow, wise
money tomorrow”.

We launched a dedicated GMW portal, with financial
learning initiatives from the IFEC and stakeholders to
enhance financial literacy among the younger generation in
Hong Kong.
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Social media

Social media platforms play an important role in helping the
IFEC deliver timely educational messages to the public. In
this ever-changing financial environment, we continue to
utilise platforms such as Facebook, Instagram and YouTube
to provide relevant investor and financial educational
information to our target audiences.

Our social media content covers various investment and
financial management topics, including virtual assets,
severe weather trading arrangements, sustainable investing,
financial scam prevention, retirement planning, investor
protection and developments in the regulatory environment.

We also produce seasonal content encouraging the public
to use the IFEC's tools and resources for planning and
managing their finances, engaging the online community
with eye-catching visuals, short videos and animations.

e N ™

N \ ,,/

e ™ ™
B RERE XU RS REN N EREEER
BYHEEN  BEEXRER/REBX B8 -
By using visually appealing formats, our social
media feeds are designed to make investor
and financial education more accessible and
enjoyable.

- DZ2ANG /
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Website and digital tools

The IFEC aims to equip the public with the knowledge

and skills needed to make informed investment and
financial decisions through a comprehensive suite of digital
resources, including our website and digital tools.

Our website serves as a key platform for engaging the
public and addressing their diverse investing and financial
learning needs. To reach our target audience of investors,
young people, parents, pre-retirees and retirees, our website
features sections tailored to their interests, serving as a go-
to source for the latest trends in financial markets, investor
and financial education initiatives and research updates.

Additionally, we offer a wide range of digital tools and
calculator widgets to assist the public in managing their
personal finances anytime, anywhere. Our award-winning
tools" address common financial management needs, such
as budgeting, debt management, saving and investing, and
retirement planning.

REGRIENERERAARBERERIBM MHHRE o
The IFEC website aims to become the go-to source for
the public to learn more about investing and financial
management.

1 RLERBEN T REFERESHAIRR2023@keR—RERREER
The IFEC digital financial management tool portal received the “Gold Winner of Website — Best User Experience”
award in the MUSE Creative Awards 2023.
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KRESMIGREREBHBIEM TAKER - N

Free digital financial management

tools and calculator widgets available

on the IFEC website.

ﬂ Y
4 N~ R\
- AN J

n\l-.l =1 & %L ‘:H,

FR > HAEREENEFENHELAR ©
EFERBREEINTEAE  FHEH
KRENRASEMEER > $#1849146,0002/E
IRE? o

Blog and e-newsletters

We reach the public through the blog posts and
e-newsletters we publish throughout the year. Using The
Chin Family characters, our blogs on investing and money
management topics recorded around 146,000 page views'”.

HEEREFBAEDRMBEEEZR > RELDEZRE
Our blogs and e-newsletters help us reach our target audiences with information

ENREENETHEEH -

tailored to their investor and financial education needs.

ﬁ—

" BREIE202553A31H « BIRERIZRR | Google Analytics
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Source of figures: Google Analytics
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HPEEREHEYGIF  BBRERSRE
LEG  MERERNERBNS  LEE
A ARBEREENREVHEEN It
S > FRAPIIRIE HATE ZMENRI R B2 Ko A8 L 4R 88
BRE[XE -

RS

FR o RANEEERZSRERNET
NEHKBREENIEMHERENRE
RERREEERE - FENMEE ~ESCH
IR AR ~ IRBh =RERE  BRIREIK
BEBMHBES -

KREGEMHFRRE

R2024F8H » REGETFEHRRRERR
ABELBREE MBS PR FHIEM
BHEEBNEZL > RFEVENR—EE
ENEEREE > KREBERGBHEFIE
Bt o MM BB LG R HERRESEE
BESBREENEBEVHE2Z R0

METERREZEREENEMHEE (HR)
2023M B RIGERE - NIBEE QTSR (EHf
B HEMAER ) DEERERENREEE

Media collaboration

To reach a wider audience, we work closely with our media
partners to spread our investor and financial education
messages through multiple touchpoints. Channels include
media interviews, press conferences, press releases and
media alerts. We also develop regular by-lined articles for
mainstream print and online publications.

Media interviews

During the year, our executives attended a number of media
interviews, during which they shared insights on various
investor and financial education topics such as prudent
investment, credit and borrowing, ESG, robo-advisors,
financial-scam prevention, retirement planning and financial
education for schoolchildren.

The IFEC FinEd Hub

In August 2024, Radio Television Hong Kong's TV programme
“Hong Kong Connection” aired an episode on the importance
of early financial education in Hong Kong. IFEC Chairman Mr
Victor Dawes reiterated that financial literacy is a crucial life
skill and parents should start as early as possible to educate
children on financial management. He also highlighted the
IFEC FinEd Hub as Hong Kong's first experiential learning
hub on investor and financial education.

TERH ERE B o
A teacher representative from Tai Po Old Market Public
School (Plover Cove)—the Gold Award recipient of the IFEC
Investor and Financial Education Award 2023 (Teaching)—
also participated in the interview to share their best
practices on teaching money management to primary
school students.
x/ \\
20244 8H » HEEA
August 2024,
Radio Television Hong Kong
BEE IR ETEBBATNT T PR
HEMEEME -
IFEC Chairman Mr Victor Dawes spoke about early
financial education in an interview with RTHK.
g P I /
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2024458 > (EERP &R
May 2024, Hong Kong Economic Journal

4 N

. /

2024458 5 (FERR)
May 2024, South China Morning Post

EE(ERMEHED) R(HERR) WHHT » REGEE
SRS MMR EE IEMHEHEATRUBRENERE -

In interviews with Hong Kong Economic Journal

and South China Morning Post, IFEC Chairman

Mr Victor Dawes explained the importance of investor
and financial education for the financial well-being of
people in Hong Kong.

ﬁ—

2024%F8H » (am730)
August 2024, am730

e

2024888 > Now TV
August 2024, Now TV

e D

o /

KEFRLIBF ML E1E (am730) &Now TVHIEA R
o XRAFARENGBEEMEREEER

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li in interviews with
am730 and Now TV on the subjects of sustainable
investing and responsible borrowing.
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JR20245F58 » REGEFIIEBIRETE
(EHMERTE) & (FERR) 0955 Rt
REENEMHAEHEBETRMBRENE
B o MEHEPEA T REZGH BB LE
BpfESR - REGEVHFRRENHEL R
HHREBNREENEBEMHENERY -

R2024%8A > REGREIEFHEUNL LE
B (am730) B R BEEH B ERE
BEURASHERTENRREASSE -
Ite5h > iR T EREEEREESCERA
ET2EBIAE - TLEEENow TVHIES
P XNEEEMEREEER °

1520246128 » REGKREEHE MIBIE
RFRREBR B LE(KAR) NaBXE
PR BRI R TaNER
Mo

MR ERE

202451 R > REGREEHBE RIBIE
RFRBESR L T HEEBEBRERITHN
SEE LIRS AR E LRERELNM
BRMBRZEEBENTH ° IR2025638 - it
MSETEREPNERNE » SHIEN
R EBRBBIENE

e ~

\_ )

2025538 » BREEBRAE
March 2025, Television Broadcasts Limited

REGREEHNERGFHABEGH LT HERTBEBRETNLER > UBETHEPHHER

B8 - MEVRERMRERR °

IFEC Head of Investor Education and Stakeholder Engagements Ms Michelle Yeung
attended the press conference organised by the Hong Kong Police Force and
participated in a TV programme sponsored by the Force, both focused on the subject of

anti-investment scams.

Investor and financial education

In May 2024, IFEC Chairman Mr Victor Dawes participated

in interviews with Hong Kong Economic Journal and South
China Morning Post, where he explained the importance

of investor and financial education for the financial well-
being of people in Hong Kong. In his comments during

the interviews, he elaborated on the IFEC's vision of digital
transformation, the launch of the IFEC FinEd Hub and how
it is contributing to investor and financial education in Hong
Kong.

In August 2024, IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li in an
interview with am730 explained the pivotal role investor
education plays in promoting sustainable financial
development in Hong Kong. In addition, she advised retail
investors to undertake thorough research before investing
in ESG products. In another interview, with Now TV, Ms Li
spoke about the responsible use of credit products.

In December 2024, IFEC Head of Investor Education and
Stakeholder Engagements Ms Michelle Yeung was featured
in an interview article in Ta Kung Pao discussing the
responsible use of robo-advisory platforms.

Anti-investment scams

In November 2024, IFEC Head of Investor Education and
Stakeholder Engagements Ms Michelle Yeung attended
the press conference organised by the Hong Kong Police
Force to raise awareness of online investment scams and
how to prevent becoming a victim. In March 2025, she also
participated in a TV programme sponsored by the Force to
promote anti-investment scam messages.

2024F 1R - (EEAW)
November 2024, Sing Tao Daily
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ERXERFNERE By-lined articles and press releases

FR - BMESERNE > TEBHERNM During the year, we developed by-lined articles and
IHEREA] > MBI AR EERN published press releases and media alerts to promote our
KREENEBTHHETEH © timely investor and financial education messages to the

public and the media.

HEREZEERNEN T REEEIE

(am730) ~ (FBF) ~ (BB ~ Now TV~  Mainstream media outlets featuring the IFEC bylined-

(EH AR - (EEHFHR MIERYE articles included am730, Lion Rock Daily, Ming Pao, Now TV,
Oriental Daily News, Sing Tao Daily and Wen Wei Po.

EETNRERZENRITINN » REENIEH

HEEENER FHESEREEERS The media also reported our corporate updates, highlighting

Ho our education campaigns, stakeholder collaborations and
corporate governance matters.

BESHESAERTAERNERXERARMERE
MHELEEREVHEEM -

The IFEC by-lined articles and related news reports
in various media platforms to promote investor
and financial education messages.

. J 4 N

20248128 » (KRR
December 2024, Ta Kung Pao

e N ™
N J
20245128 > (BBER)
December 2024, Ming Pao
4 N
N %
L ) 20244108 » (EBH&R)
October 2024, Sing Tao Daily N )
2024128 » (XER)
December 2024, Wen Wei Po 20245 8K » (RS AD)

August 2024, Hong Kong Economic Journal

—L—
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2025528 » BAER 2025528 > Now TV

February 2025, Radio Television Hong Kong February 2025, Now TV
BEEFRBHEFEEBEENS LT HESBESFRKREN BEE PR ENRSIBEEAEM L T PR ENE
Bl EMEES Now TVahf ©

IFEC Manager of Innovation and Partnerships Ms Anny Choi IFEC Head of Corporate Communications and Special
in an interview with Radio Television Hong Kong on Projects Ms Manning Lam in an interview with Now TV
retirement planning. on the importance of early financial education.

_

(BELBEHR) R (PR WHERERREZEEMIE
NBREZENRENTFARMHEER -

News reports and the IFEC by-lined articles in
Hong Kong Economic Times and Ming Pao
introducing the IFEC's resources on financial
education for children and young people.

. /
2024588 » (HAREKEB®R)
August 2024, Hong Kong Economic Times

Ve ™

o %

2024598 > (BEER) 20245 A > (BBR)
September 2024, Ming Pao G _/ November 2024, Ming Pao

L

155 1 (am730) ~ (FIRIMAHME)  (FBLEBERR) ~ (PW) ~ Now TV FEBEL (EEHK) » (BEFR) - (KAKW) ~ BREFBERQEN
(X EESR) ©

Credits: am730, Hong Kong Economic Journal, Hong Kong Economic Times, Ming Pao, Now TV, Radio Television Hong Kong, Sing Tao
Daily, South China Morning Post, Ta Kung Pao, Television Broadcasts Limited and Wen Wei Po.
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Give Your
Children
a Head
Start

BHMHERZE RS - A& TR
EREABENEER > EAMFIEE

RENMBERE - REFIREFHNSE
NWBEER > HBREBHET—HER
FREBEVHI A2 6E - RMFITERRIBE
PHEESNEAE ER -

Financial education should
start at an early age. Teaching
children the value of saving and
prudent spending helps them
build a foundation for lifelong
financial success. With the
edutainment resources of the
IFEC, parents can equip the next
generation with the knowledge
and skills needed for smart
money management as they
grow up.




HEBRER RN TS
Targeted Education Programmes
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AREARBEERBEMBABHENAN > RESGRETZEERRBNHEEMBERTE » UKAIEYH
HEEIESBIAR - HATEBRIFHESE > WEXGENBEEEERTEN > KMIRERR
HiTREE -

To enhance the effectiveness of our investor and financial education
programmes, the IFEC tailors content to meet the specific financial learning
needs and challenges of our key target audience. We also collaborate with
stakeholders to increase the reach and impact of our programmes, aiming to
inspire behavioural change.

RESHEE (2024F4H18E202553H31H)
The IFEC education programmes (1 April 2024 - 31 March 2025)

) o020
||‘|9p’17| L,

——

370+ 20,500+

HESHEIPTIR LA BEE S T1ELS HEE > 2% B« RR - EBALIRERE -
seminars or workshops provided by attendees, including students, teachers, parents,
our education programmes working adults and seniors.

MEEPE Kindergarten schoolchildren

B ANS2IEM R FREDIVIIEE The Chin Family Money and Virtues

BRI AR HE PO AW Story Books and Activities Programme

S EEREANE AR OB ERBERIR S o — Parent-Child Piggy Bank DIY
Competition

1520242584 » HPAIFEHEIFPNATR FE22EDIVHEEL In partnership with the Po Leung Kuk Life

%;ﬁuﬁi%ﬁ%&@&%%@)ﬂE%@E@ﬂﬂtiﬁﬁ ’ %ﬁﬂ \ Planning & Financial Education Centre, we

REE iﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ%fiﬂﬂﬁ%& ° JRE6IMAEE BB designed this programme to instil basic money

NORRERRKRSIMLFE © management concepts in pre-schoolers using a

storytelling approach.

During the 2024-25 school year, we added the
Parent-Child Piggy Bank DIY Competition to
this programme, with the aim of encouraging
teachers and parents to use the IFEC's online
resources to help children practise money
management concepts in their daily lives.
More than 110 children with parents from 69
kindergartens participated in the competition.
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(REER) EBREHRHERREMNERRENREERECRELXRIE (DHER
RNBE)FRERE  BREFRFEHZEEREINKE  B2EYHE (BRE)
ZOBRRE - B 2OHREEGRRE  URRRBSERBEEIERES
etk o

(From left to right) Chief Curriculum Development Officer (Kindergarten
and Primary Section), Education Bureau of the HKSAR Government Mr

‘\ / Paul Lee, Leung King Lutheran Day Nursery Wong Hiu Chun and his

- - parent, Learning Habitat Kindergarten (Novum East) Leung Sum Yu and
ZEEGHARERIERRE ) LEAHIBESMIEE her parent, Kiangsu & Chekiang Primary School (Kindergarten Section)
Ko KR EEEETF R AR AN o Wong Hin Lon and his parent, and Po Leung Kuk Youth Affairs Department
The piggy bank created by Wong Hin Supervisor Mr Window Chan.

Lon and his parent was inspired by an
automated teller machine. It won the
Most Popular Award in online voting.

RIBESEBRIE

The Most Actively Participating School Award

T |E{ER EEAR & 2R ENEE

Champion Shun Tak Fraternal Association Leung Kit
Wah Kindergarten

D8 BAENHEHHEER

Ist Runner-up The True Light Middle School of
Hong Kong (Kindergarten Section)

=8 FREHREN SRR ZER

2nd Runner-up NTW & JIWA Pok Hong Nursery School

BEg)REYEEEEIR)
Sharon Lutheran Church Kindergarten
(Tsz Oi Branch)

B2 BEE (FER)
Learning Habitat Kindergarten
(Chatham LV)
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3t B e

Award School Student

e B2 BENHEE (BERE) Z2i0cE

Champion Learning Habitat Kindergarten (Novum Leung Sum Yu
East)

GHE BEERIMZE HEEE

Ist Runner-up Leung King Lutheran Day Nursery Wong Hiu Chun
B NBNTER =R

e o
PERECRFEREBARAE)
2nd Runner-up

Most Popular Award

Kiangsu & Chekiang Primary School
(Kindergarten Section)

Wong Hin Lon

BEE
Merit

RNEBERENER

SKH Holy Spirit Church Kindergarten
BEEVSENHER (BREIR)

Sharon Lutheran Church Kindergarten (Tsz
Oi Branch)

HAREREESBERLDEER
Tin King Estate Baptist Lui Kwok Pat Fong
Kindergarten

TZEZENHER CPH)
Peace Evangelical Centre Kindergarten
(Shatin)

PRAEERZEHHER
SKH Holy Spirit Church Kindergarten

BRiEF
Chan Kin Yu

VS
Ku Yan Shek

Lai Sheung Tsun
=B
Wong Yau

FETRER
Fung Pak Yui
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INBE
7 EREEMEBEREE

HPEBBPXRBHBERHRAZEBRE
HIBIEROG L IER A8 - UEE
BERBRIFHIENRE -

SENHAETEI2023 24 2 FBRITERL > B8
19,0002 £ RBERRLHENS A o o
810,000 R B A R HEEM 2RETEI R
H BRI 24E BB 5 8IR9A8 L8

T EFREET R EIB2018- 192 FFRHE
17 BiE2023- 242K » &5t 7 HBE300
MRAEHZE » HEBFB/NEHER

Primary schoolchildren

The Financially Literate Schools Programme
(FLS)

We co-organised this financial education programme with
the Centre for University & School Partnership, Faculty

of Education, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, to
help primary schoolchildren on their journey to become
financially proficient.

The sixth batch of this programme was successfully
completed in the 2023-24 school year, with more than
19,000 students participating along with their parents and
teachers. Additionally, the online game of this programme
reached over 10,000 students from both FLS and non-FLS
participating schools.

From its inception in the 2018-19 school year to the end of
the 2023-24 school year, the FLS programme has developed
more than 300 lesson plans, which are openly accessible to
all primary schools.

F2023- 242 F 2 E A BREBY BRE8I IHNE
TERE A 2B EENEET2024Fc B RITNEE
BIENZERERRE ©

Students who participated in the “My Dream
School” online learning game of the FLS in the
2023-24 school year were recognised during
the yearly dissemination event held in June
/2024

—r
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INEETRRLK{EETE Financial Literacy Ambassador Programme for
Primary Students

ILEHEEREREH > 28N/ N 24EET Co-organised with Po Leung Kuk, this programme trained
B AEM RE - BR AR B RS senior primary students as Financial Literacy Ambassadors,

8 5| B/ \ER2FERBTHS o X who in turn organised games and activities to help junior
2024F 4B E2025F3F » BISE/NEZR primary students learn basic money management concepts.
et > B E8iE2, 000% 84 From April 2024 to March 2025, over 2,000 students from 15

schools benefited from this programme.

e N
. /
B EIBIR I IS IR I B R A © ~ ™

Students are trained as Financial Literacy Ambassadors via a
money management game.

REBHRIANBNE S B EARIBHEES o
Students at Po Leung Kuk Tin Ka Ping Primary School
learn basic money management concepts.  \_ /
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B
WEERA ST 4181

FEEBWSEMENNERERARE  8E
TRAB/H MU RLLE - St SER
FHoR B WHES S BRARTS M A AE R R AU
o EEMPZ2EREABBSERREN
BE7] > LIREBAEZRERS o

EREE2023/24 — PEL ORI E R
B RIELL R 202457 B B T4E A B BEEiE
8o ABMREZ2EREAFERNES RS
BRR o LEERS| TRB75EFE B8
800242 ©

E2024/25F 51 8|H R B2 A ICRI{ELLE » )
5| TRB67EFE « BiE00RMEEAI(E
I FREBER R » BB
HIEM ST W AP RNIEEFIT2E
o

Secondary school students
Digital Financial Literacy Programme for Youth

Recognising the growing importance of digital financial
literacy, we co-organised this programme and competition
with the Education Bureau. The programme helps secondary
school students increase their awareness of digital financial
services and cyber risks, while developing the essential skills
to use digital personal financial services safely and protect
themselves from financial scams.

The final presentation of the Digital Financial Literacy
Programme for Youth 2023/24 — Four-Cell Story and Mini-
Movie Competition along with award presentation ceremony
took place in July 2024. Students presented the concepts
and learning outcomes of their works. The competition
engaged over 800 students from 75 secondary schools.

The programme for 2024/25 introduced the Instagram
Content Creation Competition. The Instagram feeds and
reels created by the participating students highlighted the
importance of utilising fintech to develop financial plans
and prepare them for making future investments. The
programme engaged over 900 students from 67 secondary
schools.

\

- e .

,/’ o )

EARERRYBEREREERIMEBRIREE) EERTENRZ RN MBH S IFEERRZ O X DR BB E2023/24 — PRENRRERER

RIfFLEE S AR () FIAARE (B) SRAS SR -

Chief Curriculum Development Officer (Technology Education), Education Bureau of the HKSAR Government Mr Henry Lin and IFEC
Head of Innovation and Partnerships Ms Sindy Wong with the awardees of Senior Category (left) and Junior Category (right) of the
Digital Financial Literacy Programme for Youth 2023/24 - Four-Cell Story and Mini-Movie Competition respectively.

BEGRIFRBHAREEROL L () - EARRBNAERSRFREREE

(REHE) BRR AL (B) MBI E2024/25 — F2EICAMELLBIRABERBEMR o

IFEC Head of Innovation and Partnerships Ms Sindy Wong (left), Senior Curriculum
Development Officer (Technology Education), Education Bureau of the HKSAR
Government Dr Grace Chan (right) and the awardees of Junior Category of the Digital
Financial Literacy Programme for Youth 2024/25 - Instagram Content Creation Competition. \_ Y
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ERYIEE2024/25 — PELICAHELLBESRETE
WHELZBRFEDBMHEN SR o

Students and a teacher from Ying Wa Girls’
School received the Champion award in the
Senior Category of the Digital Financial Literacy
Programme for Youth 2024/25 - Instagram

N Content Creation Competition.




B/ 2023/24 — REENRREREHEI(ELLE
Digital Financial Literacy Programme for Youth 2023/24 - Four-Cell Story and
Mini-Movie Competition

H4R4E (R—Z=EH =) Junior Category (S1 - S3)

T ENgESEgERE EISIYES

Champion SKH Bishop Mok Sau Tsang Secondary Tang Ka Yau
School

oRE YNl FREZ

B{EERSE SKH Chan Young Secondary School Chen Pui Chi

Ist Runner-up

Best Presentation Award

=8 PRSI ERE Zpa

2nd Runner-up

SKH Bishop Mok Sau Tsang Secondary
School

Yeung Wing Yee

BEE WHERA AR REE

Merit Kiangsu-Chekiang College (Shatin) Cheong Cheuk Yin
W AS FHES
Kiangsu-Chekiang College (Shatin) Hui Sin Yung
BHEEHS BRI
The True Light School of Hong Kong Chung Wai Lam Vivianne
BEHEECHS Abdul Rahman Asfia

The True Light School of Hong Kong
RE=PrE 2 FARIER 2
TWGHSs Sun Hoi Directors' College

e

Liao Yuen Ting

ERIEER ==
St. Paul's Convent School Wong Chi Hey Bethany
BRI B E MR BRI ==

Most Liked Award: Four-
Cell Story

St. Paul’'s Convent School

Wong Chi Hey Bethany

B4 (PP EHK) Senior Category (S4 - S6)

e BREEEEN Rive ~ RIREE ~ B ~ BB
Champion HKUGA College Chin Shih Yun; Ng Yan Pui;
Chung Jiagi Alyssa;
Chan Lok Tung
D8 FLEERCER BRZEER ~ ik TR - BR#

Ist Runner-Up

Academy of Innovation (Confucius Hall)

Chen Chak Hei; Tse Ka Wing;
Li Sze Wai; Lou Jiaqi

=8 RIFAEERT HEE - P
R{EERE Pope Paul VI College Wong Po Yiu; Leung Hiu Lam

2nd Runner-up
Best Presentation Award

BER RETHE/ WP S $EE - THE - FTIEH EER
Merit Lok Sin Tong Young Ko Hsiao Lin Yung Ka Ying; Li Yuen Ting;
Secondary School Li Yik Him; Mai Fu Wing
B RER BOR BRI B
Holy Family Canossian College Celine Tsang; Chan Ching Vi;
Yeung Hoi Yu
ERRENEEEH % Rk ERT HEE - 2B

Most Liked Award: Mini-
Movie

Pope Paul VI College

Wong Po Yiu; Leung Hiu Lam
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YIER1E2024/25 — PELIGRIELLE
Digital Financial Literacy Programme for Youth 2024/25 - Instagram Content

Creation Competition

44 (F—Z=F =) Junior Category (S1-S3)

BE I B
Champion Marymount Secondary School Yeung Pui Ki
G e el BT
REAHBNREBEMRE Lock Tao Secondary School Yan Zi Qing
Ist Runner-up
Most Effective Education and
Publicity Award
=5 CEERRIRFS A
2nd Runner-up Yan Oi Tong Tin Ka Ping Secondary School Yang Jiang Jun
ERE PRER E
Merit China Holiness College Tang Yan Ching
BARABEER WS
HKUGA College Lam Hang Yu Chelsea
VAN R FIE
Pope Paul VI College Yeung Tsz Ching
IEfEE EHAR B SRS B2
Shun Tak Fraternal Association Yung Yau Xia Zhihan
College
EEYEEGEERE [AxE%
Christian & Missionary Alliance Sun Kei Chau Wing Yiu
Secondary School
=D GG F 52 BEEHEEGEERS [BsEE

Most Liked Award: |G feed

Christian & Missionary Alliance Sun Kei
Secondary School

Chau Wing Yiu

=448 (REEZEH7S) Senior Category (S4 — S6)

T & RIEL R I~ RBM ~ MIRE
Champion Ying Wa Girls' School Mak Ho Lam Holami;

Cheung Kiu Nga; Lam Yuet Sze Yancy
GHEES REAEHSHNEN AIAZ ~ MRURTD ~ EREERR - 1R5E
REAXENEENRE CCC Heep Woh College Ng Paak Yin: Lam Lok Yee;

Ist Runner-up
Most Effective Education and
Publicity Award

Chang Muk Long;
Tsui Wing Tung

=5

2nd Runner-up

RIS
Fukien Secondary School

SRSCH ~ E—85 ~ 2185 ~ BT g
Cheung Man Ki; Yip Yat Yee;
Leung Pak Hei; Lau Sum Lok

BER
Merit

FLEEEIB(CERR

Academy of Innovation (Confucius Hall)
HFSHE L AL ERAR (FHIE)

Delia Memorial School (Clee Path)

EE/ZA\%FI //I\\EF'?—
S.K-H. Tsang Shiu Tim Secondary School

SCAERIET EhT
St. Mary's Canossian College

ERZEER

St. Paul's Convent School

et

Ma Hayden Johannah

E5E « BT« BFIE « SOHM
Singh Kaur Gurleen;

Saeed Maliha Shahzad;

Leeron Angela Taguba Capule;
Dholakiya Kiah Mukeshkumar
ERISE BT - EERR ~ RS
Poon Ho Yee; Chow Tsz Nga;
Huang Ki Leung; Yeung Chun Ho

R BIRE ~ B

Zhao Wai Yin; Feng Wai Huen Gigi;
Lai Hui Tung

E/%{«fg N %%ﬁ@u\ N ‘SR‘/Q/%% EB;EEFF

Pang Tsz Yau Christine;

Charmain Nicole Wong; Lai Hoi Ying
Serena; Cheng Tin Yan Harmony

BSECICH 742
Most Liked Award: |G feed

E/&%Fé//l“q]?—
S.K.H. Tsang Shiu Tim Secondary School

ERISE BT - B RS
Poon Ho Yee; Chow Tsz Nga;
Huang Ki Leung; Yeung Chun Ho

REENEMBEERS
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BT TRIEBEANR2022F#H » BBRFHBE
BT R REEZEE AN BEREIN
o EEERNRERE - EFREEA
BitHES - BERSIBE280HPEEMA -

72024252 F » HfHMEHER - &8%
Y EEREERATUNTEEIAZY:
NEMBRBITEFIRIEBEAIRBLEE o
HEEERESEREEE T IRIEEAL >
RENZ0BAE « BIBS00 R BESNLEE o

Digital Stock Trading Guru (DSTG)

The DSTG was launched in 2022 as a fun, interactive tool

to help secondary students acquire essential financial
knowledge and understand the importance of having the
right attitude towards investing. Over 280 secondary schools
have been accessing the DSTG since its inception.

In the 2024-25 school year, we organised the DSTG Inter-
School Competition with the support of the Education
Bureau, the Hong Kong Association for Business Education
Limited and the School of Accounting and Finance of The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Designed to broaden the
use of the DSTG, the competition attracted the participation
of over 500 students from 130 secondary schools.

\ /

. /

HiB340R 2L EE ML CERRITHLE -
More than 340 students participated in the competitions
took place at Liu Po Shan Memorial College.

RELFEEET RIEEAN BREEREMEREAMT o
Secondary school students experienced investing

in stocks and managing personal finances through
Digital Stock Trading Guru.
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$avvy Planner Workshop

With Prudential Hong Kong Limited and the Social Welfare
Department as the sponsors, we co-organised this workshop
together with the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups.
The programme teaches money management concepts

to students through the $avvy Planner board game and
reinforces the importance of financial management for their
careers and life planning.

The workshop was extended to tertiary institutions in the
2024-25 school year. As of 31 March 2025, the programme
reached over 180 tertiary students and over 2,200 secondary
school students and mentees from the HKSAR Government's
Strive and Rise Programme.

. J

RELETFEIEEMERIIRI TS > BREMR LERSRIEN -
Secondary students engaged in the money management board game during
a $avvy Planner Workshop.

T ER B SR IR LA FIRIRIEST » BB 2 A B REENBY MG ENE ARG o
$avvy Planner Workshops were introduced to tertiary institutions to equip
students with essential skills to manage personal finances and investment.
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Tertiary students
Personal Finance Ambassador Programme

During the 2024-25 school year, we co-organised this
programme under the theme “Money Trap” with St. James’
Settlement, funded by the HKEX Foundation through The
Community Chest.

A total of 21 teams from 13 tertiary institutions took part in
the programme, which trained participants as “Personal
Finance Ambassadors”. The teams developed financial
education projects to promote messages pertaining to the
theme among their peers, reaching more than 8,900 tertiary
students. Winning teams also delivered financial education
messages to more than 400 secondary students.

BFEMHEEE N
Excellent Financial KERR
Education Project Award Tertiary institution
Ei€ BEEXHEH SN (BE) 2R 4E
Gold Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
(Kwun Tong)
IRAZ BAKEEEES BEEX
Silver The HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education
iz EEEH{- A2 Financial Trap Spotters
Bronze Hong Kong Shue Yan University
ESya =N EIRESR
Saint Francis University
ECE PN EREFst
The Education University of Hong Kong
HBET RS FRIRLIER
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
TR E AR EHIEEARE 1 want you!

Judges’ Award

The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong

-

15202581 B £1THVE AN IR K53
2024-25FME M FZFT1E ©

Personal Finance Ambassador
Programme 2024-25 Presentation and
_/ Award Ceremony held in January 2025.
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720254318 > B AR A5 820242589482
EfXm 2L EIRRHE o
Winning teams in the Personal Finance
Ambassador Programme 2024-25 promoted
financial education to secondary school

N _/  students in March 2025.

BEREANEMEEEE Practical Personal Financial Management

BPESEARERAERIEEEARY  Crogramme

BEE N A R » B2 EZ2EIERMAH Together with tertiary institutions in Hong Kong, we offered

NigE  MEEBBREAMKE - £/ > M face-to-face and online seminars on personal financial

#iBIE1,000 L BFRMEH2IGHE o HM  management with the aim of equipping students with

TRE 2 LR EIBE IR U R EEREE L& the financial knowledge and skills needed to make sound

BE > SEMMMBETEE o financial decisions. A total of 23 sessions were delivered to
over 1,000 students during the year. A Freshmen Money
Smart Guide and Anti-scam Toolkit with key financial
management messages were also made available as self-
learning guides.

HEBEBBRNELERITRANE AR HIERE / \
A seminar on personal financial management
for students at The Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts.

4 N

- /

BEFANRHIEM KB HREEIRE

The Freshmen Money Smart Guide and Anti-scam Toolkit for youth.

L
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8824 8 Winners List

Web3 Ideathon

With the growing importance of Web3 in the financial
services and investment landscape, educating the next
generation on its principles and developments is crucial.
In collaboration with the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology (HKUST) Business School and Cyberport

Hong Kong, the IFEC organised the “2025 Hong Kong Web3

Ideathon: Innovations Empowering the City”".

The competition attracted 36 teams and more than 150
students from various tertiary institutions, showcasing
the creative potential of Hong Kong tertiary students in
the fast-evolving Web3 landscape. The proposals from the

participating teams demonstrated how to use decentralised

technologies, blockchain and digital assets to provide
innovative solutions across three financial and social
themes. Two workshops were held in December 2024 and
March 2025 with industry practitioners and academics who
engaged participants on various Web3-related topics.

=

Student

o USTranscend EE SN FEETHE ~ BRERAT ~ BRKRAN
Champion The Hong Kong University of IESS
Science and Technology Feng Shiya; Cai Yujing;
Chen Tianxin Jessie;
Zheng Mengen
oEES Powerpay RN Antariksh Verma;
1st Runner-up The Hong Kong University of ~ Saanvi Shukla,
Science and Technology Likithpranai Mukkamala;
Kushaj Dwivedi
=EH bee3 BEARKKS FHE ~ KA
2nd Runner-up The Hong Kong University of  Marco Lee; Nicola Chu
Science and Technology
BAPXKRS ERR
The Chinese University of Norris Chung
Hong Kong
BER Binox BERRAS BRR ~ FFIREE
Honourable Mention The Hong Kong University of ~ Aarav Kumar » TR
Science and Technology Tai Tin King; Shaun Tyler Tan;
Aarav Kumar; Jacky Weng
Bug Bytes BEARKAS MER ~ 758 ~ RIE
pal25S

The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology

Alicia Destiny Utama;
Li Hao Han; Sia Zhi Vii;
James Fang
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The 8 finalist teams presented their Web3 innovative Participating students engaged in meaningful discussions
solutions at the pitch festival held in March 2025. with the judge.

4 N /7 N
. AN J
TEBAUSTranscend (FERHTAS) DEBAPowerpay (FHRITAZR)

Champion: USTranscend (HKUST) Ist Runner-up: Powerpay (HKUST)

4 N

. /

FERRbee (HERBEABNEBHRNAL)
2nd Runner-up: bee3 (HKUST and
The Chinese University of Hong Kong)

—_—
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Young adults
Youth Financial Education Programme

We partnered with the Home and Youth Affairs Bureau

to organise this programme for young people at the five
youth hostels under the Youth Hostel Scheme, aiming to
help youth tenants develop effective financial management
plans.

Speaking at the kick-off ceremony in May 2024, Ms Alice
Mak, Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs of the HKSAR
Government, said she hoped that young people would
utilise the financial education resources to actively enhance
their knowledge, attitude and ability in personal financial
management during their stay in the youth hostels,

and engage in personal financial planning as well as life
planning.

As part of the programme, guest speakers were invited
to share their life experience and stories on investing
and financial management at the youth hostels. Regular
e-newsletters were also distributed, offering up-to-date
information and resources on investor and financial
education.

\_

ERBRENRBAEEFEFRRAREZBLLE FIHHAM - EBBEBNRELEFEEFHRRBRALZERE FIHLD) - EABERNEEEE
iR SE (FHEE D) « REGBEEFHMZ T FEHEM) « SEREES AR IFFRESTLE FHIED) » UREEAFFHERLESFEMAE

STEIRIENE ©

Attending the kick-off ceremony of the Youth Financial Education Programme were the Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs of the

HKSAR Government, Ms Alice Mak (front row, fourth left); the Under Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs of the HKSAR Government,
Mr Clarence Leung (front row, third left); the Commissioner for Youth of the HKSAR Government, Mr Eric Chan (front row, third right);

the General Manager of the IFEC, Ms Dora Li (front row, fourth right); and former Chairman of the Hong Kong Investment Funds
Association Mr Bruno Lee (front row, second left), along with guests and youth tenants.
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o m SHAERTHZEREMFMRAEANABERE -
89 /0 ( $) Participants reported that the storytelling sharing sessions
I:@ motivated them to evaluate their finances.

4 N/ N

- N %

RESEOEREES NG EETRENL REGEEEFIML LT » REMSRELRFEETERBLLHESTEBS D ZMIATTIRE RIE/M
alis: PN L YN E

Guest speakers Mr Bruno Lee, former Chairman of the Hong Kong Investment Funds Association, Ms Dora Li, General Manager
of the IFEC, and Ms Pheona Liu, Senior Consultant of TransUnion Limited, shared their life experience and stories on investing
and financial management at the youth hostels.

EREFEESNEAMRMEFEN > MEMPIR
BB E IR BRI ERE o

Tailored e-newsletter featuring topics of
interest related to investing and financial
management for tenants at youth hostels.
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Employees
Financial Wellness Programme

In this programme, we delivered investor and financial
education themed talks in collaboration with various
employers and organisations for their staff and members.
Designed to help participants make prudent investment and
financial decisions, the talks covered topics such as money
management, investing, insurance, retirement planning and
financial education for children. Some 47 talks were held
during the year for around 3,700 participants.

In addition to the talks, online toolkits on money
management and retirement planning were made available
to the participants as extended self-learning guides.

PLEMFEFRRRRBNFEF
PLERE -

Online toolkits on money
management and retirement
planning.

2N J b

HRETIAEAHETRNSRER
FHEE o

A talk on money management
co-organised with an employer
for its staff.

—_—

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 202425 /9



HHBERRZRNBSHE

Targeted Education Programmes

PR ABERALTREER
B EE

HPISMTAEBAT REBPAERMAE
E - BRBESRREEF AT AR BN
REim A7 @17t IR AR BA LR ©

HPBELNBTEENERER - UKk
BEBEREREAANEY S EFMRENER
RIH > UEBHRBALIRAGTENER
IRIE o Bi82,600% 2 REZFIULEE
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BN ERPHEEE o

Representatives from the IFEC and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
at the seminar organised by the HKTE.

-\ -/

RE

FR o RARED AR BEREREERE
EASSURRIRBY — R ) 48 LY > WBh M PIpER B
EEETERNERERR - HFIERIENE
BERHHHBRENRSE - BYRERAKEE
R e

KT EESBIFHERLGE  UERERREL
ERERERHKREENIENHEERE
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BFNS R RENEARU ISR S D SREHME -

Investor and Financial Education Programme
for Mainland New Arrivals

We participated in seminars organised by Hong Kong Talent
Engage (HKTE) for recent arrivals to Hong Kong under the
Quality Migrant Admission Scheme and Top Talent Pass
Scheme.

In these seminars, we provided an overview of Hong Kong's
financial system and the resources and tools the IFEC
provides on investment and personal finances, aiming to
help newcomers integrate into the city's financial landscape.
Over 2,600 participants benefited from this programme.

Seniors

During the year, we continued to promote the “One Day
Adventure with Grandparents Chin" online game to help
the public, including seniors, identify financial scam

tactics commonly encountered in daily life. Resources on
investment, financial management and retirement planning
targeting seniors were made available on dedicated web
page on our website.

We also delivered investor and financial education seminars
to seniors, both face-to-face and online via stakeholder
network. A total of 32 seminars were held for more than 1,600
participants.

AHEREBNARKIEN
HGHEE o

A talk on financial
management during
retirement for
seniors.

Our anti-financial scam game provides an interactive way
for the public to acquire anti-financial scam knowledge.
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Vulnerable groups

In 2024-25, we continued to support our community
partners in organising tailored investor and financial
education programmes to help members of vulnerable
groups build financial resilience. Topics included budgeting,
saving, investing and planning for the future.

The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Family budgeting programme for high-risk
families

The programme helped high-risk families who are facing
life challenges and financial difficulties enhance their family
budgeting skills. A total of 48 families and their children
benefitted from the programme. A budgeting toolkit was
designed with over 100 copies distributed to high-risk
families.

2METEENE T IS EEERKIS o
Participants agreed that the programme
improved their money management skills.

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
Financial literacy project for unemployed youth

This project trained unemployed youth aged 15 to 29 to spot
online financial scams and enhance their communication
skills. A total of 27 youths took part in the training, who then
educated around 700 seniors in the community on using
their smartphones safely and staying vigilant against online
financial scams.

BMEBRTEBBNAVENER > MFIRIIERL
BESEBARBFRIRF ©

Participants reported that their
knowledge of financial management
concepts improved through the
programme training.

SideBySide
Financial literacy project for ex-offenders,
prisoners and arrestees

In partnership with the Correctional Services Department,
SideBySide helped social workers educate over 1,450
rehabilitated individuals in money management skills and
provided guidance on achieving their financial goals.
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We organised a game booth and financial education

workshop for the Indonesian community during
“Indonesia Week".

Indonesia Week

In November 2024, we participated in “Indonesia Week”,
targeting the Indonesian community, including Indonesian
migrant domestic workers. The event was co-organised by
the Consulate General of the Republic of Indonesia in Hong
Kong, Alumni Association of University of Indonesia Hong
Kong Chapter, Indonesia Incorporated and The Hong Kong
Indonesian Students Association, with support from the
Ministry of Tourism and Creative Economy of the Republic of
Indonesia.

During the event, we hosted a game booth and conducted
a financial management workshop at the Wanchai
Harbourfront Event Space to raise awareness of anti-
money laundering, responsible borrowing and romance-
related scams. Toolkits in Bahasa, Tagalog and English were
distributed on site and made available online. More than
2,400 participants benefited from the event.

4
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The IFEC introduced the Hong Kong Strategy for

Financial Literacy in 2015 as a platform for addressing
the need for investor and financial education in Hong
Kong. The Strategy was subsequently revised in 2019.

Through the Strategy, we collaborate with
stakeholders and organisations to develop investor
and financial education initiatives for targeted groups

in the community, including schoolchildren, youth,
working adults, the elderly and vulnerable groups. Our
objective is to meet the desired financial education
outcomes we have identified and continually improve
the quality of the programmes we offer.
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Financial Literacy Strategy

We established the Strategy to highlight the relevance of
financial literacy to socio-economic issues of concern for
policymakers and stakeholders. Its vision is to help people
in Hong Kong make informed and responsible financial
decisions that lead to improved financial well-being for
themselves and their family members.

As the owner of the Strategy, the IFEC leads its
implementation with the goal of creating an environment
conducive to delivering high quality financial education.

The Strategy has three strategic focuses, each of which is
associated with specific core actions:

1. Awareness: To increase the public’'s awareness of the
benefits of financial education to their financial well-
being;

2. Advocacy: To raise the awareness of policymakers and
stakeholders on how improving financial literacy levels
can support their policy areas and work; and

W

. Collaboration: To support collaboration among
stakeholders for the delivery of more and higher quality
financial education.

Financial education outcomes

Five target segments and key behavioural themes have
been identified in the Strategy, as illustrated in the table

I
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Financial Education Coordination
Committee

The Financial Education Coordination Committee was
formed in July 2019 to reinforce support for the Strategy. The
committee comprises representatives from the government
and related organisations, regulators, financial institutions,
industry associations and professional bodies, as well as non-
governmental organisations (NGOs).

Member organisations support the Strategy by

- aligning their financial education efforts with the Strategy;
- assisting in the delivery of core actions;

- sharing best practices;

- identifying financial literacy issues; and

- providing feedback on the Strategy to the IFEC.

During the year, we engaged stakeholder organisations to
discuss prevailing financial literacy issues and encouraged
sharing of financial education initiatives. The IFEC will
continue to work with these stakeholders to reinforce the

importance of financial literacy among different target
segments.

.

EBYHENEZEeHREZeRIEERNERGARIELRMETRE - 202459881778
The Financial Education Coordination Committee chaired by IFEC's then Board member, Dr Rex Auyeung, met and
discussed prevailing topics related to investor and financial education in September 2024.

Fo AREMREERIEMAENEERE o
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Financial Education Coordination Committee
%8 Members

(MIsT : BEEE HMBRAR)

(Remarks: Sponsor representative /Coordinator representative)

##% Organisation %4 Name

SHERBHREEEY BN E oas - 0P (X)) EFRmA
Investor and Financial Education Council B AUVEUNG Belk duei, B 658 7 [Eheiiiserson)]
Board member
B ()2 (BIER) e

LI Yuen Chow, Dora (Chairperson)? (Vice Chairperson)?
General Manager

BEE BIERE) ¢ (WEB)° waEsgaRiprmEes
YEUNG Wai Yee, Michelle (Vice Chairperson)*

(Secretary)®
Head of Investor Education and Stakeholder Engagements

NS (BB °e wm=
YAU Kwan Pang (Secretary)®

Manager
RFRIE (BIFR) BFRAE] BIKNE KB (=5E) BIRL 7 7BARH
AlA International Limited LAU., Elaine

Chief Executive Officer, AIA Company (Trustee) Limited

BRF pEzsEagEes
NG, Benne

Head of Corporate Client Communications

RREE B RE FEE  AXA ZEPEIARE « BBKBPITEATH
AXA Hong Kong and Macau WAN, Sally

Chief Executive Officer, Greater China

MEBRE otxEnes
LAM, Sadie’

Corporate Communications Director

FREDERTT (BF8) BRAR EGRZ  mr
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited KUNG YEUNG Yun Chi, Ann

Advisor

JE5|E]= e P
CHOW Kwok Cheong, Arnold

General Manager

CFA g/ ARrEmoimEsg BRE  CrA GO ELBEREEIE » DIETEBERES G
CFA Institute/CFA Society Hong Kong HOU, Brenda

Senior Head, APAC, Global Partnerships & Client Solutions, CFA Institute

ZEHE CrABEERAEBESREE
LEE, Scott

Senior Director, Strategic Partnerships, CFA Institute
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EHE BsEsremsnmsester
MAK, Richard
Immediate Past President, CFA Society Hong Kong

TEiEER FRIEE S B R TR R TR E
Citi SAN, Aveline®
Chief Executive Officer and Banking Head, Citi Hong Kong & Macau

JTEA  7ERT(E ) EIRA IR
KONG, Vicky®
Chief Executive, Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited

FRBEC EEEATRENEE SO EEARALERTE
LEE, Caren™

Head of Communications, Asia North & Australia Cluster and Hong
Kong, Citi

HEH CEETEAERTSREEE

TSE, Carmen”

Senior Vice President, Hong Kong Communications
HEBEZEE EEE wnE
Consumer Council WONG Fung Han, Gilly

Chief Executive

AE  HEEREPEESE
LAl Cho Yee, Joey

Head, Consumer Education Division

BERERNE BURIR s
Hong Kong Family Welfare Society CHAU Shuk King, Kitty

Chief Executive

FREEN  mEgEOBRE
CHAN Wai Mun, Venus

Senior Manager, Financial Education Centre

BAREERS BlmEe rrmes
Hong Kong Federation of Insurers LAU Pui Ling, Selina

Chief Executive

KIE EeIE SR e
LEUNG, Maggie

Deputy General Manager, Communications and Committee

EEERMEER BHEE B R EE)
Hong Kong Monetary Authority NG Ying Kei, Archie

Executive Director (Corporate Services)

TEE R HERES)
LI Chun Kit, Patrick
Senior Manager (Education & Publicity)

BREHR TFRIE  mEEEEERmEs
Hong Kong Police Force YAU Kin Hung, Tyrol

Chief Superintendent, Commercial Crime Bureau
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HHE mrRzEtRRERREDOERE
WONG Chi Man, Grace

Chief Inspector, Anti-Deception Coordination Centre, Commercial
Crime Bureau

BIRIE  AHRIASE SRR RSB R
CHENG Ka Chun, Aaron

Chief Inspector, Senior Police Call and Community Engagement
Section, Public Relations Wing

REXEER REIFGBS »IP  {7H#EE:
Insurance Authority CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement GBs, P

Chief Executive Officer

FETE? ApTaBnamaE
WONG Yuk Ping, Joanne®

Senior Manager, Market Conduct Division

BERIE® B HRSEREE
FUNG, Kathleen®™

Senior Manager, Policy and Legislation

BEIMABEEFENEER R e
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes CHENG Yan Chee
Authority Managing Director

PROGAES  ABAcHe (3450 575)
CHAN Yuen Ling, Florence

General Manager (External Affairs)

RAREERAT HEm  FrEses
Prudential Hong Kong Limited LAM, Lawrence

Chief Executive Officer

FIE cxspmiE
FONG, Wayne
Head of Corporate Affairs

BENPEEREREES ZEFESBS P THAEH
Securities and Futures Commission LEUNG Fung Yee, Julia sBsS, JP

Chief Executive Officer

ZTOGREE  EE RS BRI
LAl Kam Lun, Donald™

Associate Director (Secretariat and External)

HHEFER® (I (MABIN B RN )
CHIU Sze Wan, Wendy"”

Manager (Secretariat and External)

BE LBESIRITERAR MEAT  BsEiTmes
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking LIM Hui Hung, Luanne
Corporation Limited Chief Executive Officer, Hong Kong

BEE mReyasaRRsEsERes
CHIU Chi Fai, William
Director, Global Philanthropy, Global Sustainability
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BELIBESBRASE
The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited

ESHC P HITEBFEE
LI Ling Cheung, Raymond™ ip

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

PETE Ip  #iTEERRE
POU, Colin' ip

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

REHE 20R EHEELER
LEUNG Sze Wan, Angela

Vice President (Marketing and Business Development)

RE=P3
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

B (7B
SU Yau On, Albert

Chief Executive

PRIGAE REEMREHEDLIE
CHAN Fuk Lung, Henry
Supervisor, Healthy Budgeting Family Debt Counselling Centre

Visa BB R AE]
Visa Hong Kong Limited

REE  FHRIRE T
LEONG, Paulina

General Manager, Hong Kong and Macau

SPETT ERRAMEmReEE
HUI, Johnson

Head of Corporate Communications, Hong Kong and Macau

[CoRNe s RN Yo U2 BN SN CN N N By

202269818 E2024510818H
B2024£108193
20229818 E2024510818H
B20244108193
H2024F481HZE2024510818H
B20244108198#E
BH2024F5A6RE
20229818 E2025F181H
BH2025%1828 1

FH2023F 78108 E2025%F181H
H20255 18285

202249 A1HE20244E8H138
B202458814H#E

202249 A1HE 20244108318
B20244 11818

202269 A1RE2024F128250
H20244E12 826 HitE

[Cole o IEN RNe) B2 BN SN CN I S By

From 1 September 2022 to 18 October 2024
From 19 October 2024

From 1 September 2022 to 18 October 2024
From 19 October 2024

From 1 April 2024 to 18 October 2024

From 19 October 2024

From 6 May 2024

From 1 September 2022 to 1 January 2025
From 2 January 2025

From 10 July 2023 to 1 January 2025

From 2 January 2025

From 1 September 2022 to 13 August 2024
From 14 August 2024

From 1 September 2022 to 31 October 2024
From 1 November 2024

From 1 September 2022 to 25 December 2024
From 26 December 2024
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KREEREM T 2024

F20256E38 » HFIBITREENEBHMHEHE
20240882138 » DIRBABERNIFHEE
BB EE NI Y EFRERME S o

REHENTEREAEARBEAMES
BREHRBBESFETRE BEEIE

BERMELINBEGTERHRBEL L
IMARREZEGEEHREIE  MIFIEER
BSRE 0 KRRFHESFRATSRMRE
ENBYHBEEENEEN  EMBEEQR
BUIERIRES) > WIRABABNTRMBEF I

SERBGANRBEER - RERBLREXE
12 BRI M BBV R - HASIBHE
B RIERE o

Investor and Financial Education Award
(IFEA) 2024

In March 2025, we hosted the IFEA 2024 Award Presentation
Ceremony, recognising the outstanding efforts of
stakeholders from various sectors in advancing investor and
financial education in Hong Kong.

Officiating at the ceremony were Mr Christopher Hui,
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury of the
HKSAR Government, Dr Kelvin Wong, Chairman of the SFC,
and Ms Julia Leung, Chief Executive Officer of the SFC, with
Mr Victor Dawes, Chairman of the IFEC hosting the event.

In their remarks, they emphasised the importance of the
collaborative efforts among stakeholders to provide investor
and financial education initiatives to the community, with
the aim of improving financial literacy and strengthening
Hong Kong's financial competitiveness.

This year, 64 applications were received from corporates,
public and professional bodies, NGOs and schools. A total
of 31 organisations and schools received awards.

-

DR

B HEREE NIV B R20245R52H48 -

Award 2024 Presentation Ceremony.

90 REEREMBEZET 2024-25F#

(AEEL)BETTHEHREEL L - REFIFEHLRELE -
ERRBRHNMEEBEREERRERF EFTREREEETFEER A

(From left to right) Ms Julia Leung, Chief Executive Officer
of the SFC, Mr Victor Dawes, Chairman of the IFEC, Mr
Christopher Hui, Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury of the HKSAR Government, and Dr Kelvin Wong,
Chairman of the SFC at the Investor and Financial Education

KEENBMHER2024M1542E - 2EREHBRIBVHAB AN
?JE% NS RBMAESL  LIRREZSERANFHE LFEE
HRHAE o

Recipients of the Investor and Financial Education Award
2024, along with participants from the IFEC school
programmes for kindergarten, primary, secondary, and
tertiary students, as well as stakeholders from various sectors
attended the ceremony.




N /U

NBERTERENZMMASMREZG RSB HBNGEE - ENIEM R ES82024-25FRAFEBMNARME RS RE -

Primary school students shared their learnings from the IFEC Tertiary students from the winning teams of the Personal
school programmes with the officiating guests. Finance Ambassador Programme 2024-25 were recognised

during the ceremony.

ERETRERGEINEEZEFEN SR BERERE NIBMAER2024 ©
Recipients of the IFEA 2024 were awarded by Dr Kelvin Wong, Chairman of the SFC and Mr Victor Dawes,
Chairman of the IFEC.

4 N N

_ NG /

BREERIBMHEE ((hX) GRS BREBENBUHER (N BEERE L IEBTEE) SII%E
Awardees of the IFEA 2024 (Corporate) Awardees of the IFEA 2024 (Public/Professional Body and NGO)

4 N 4 N

- J - J

BREERIBMHER (BE) —BRATRER BREENIBMHE 5 () — HENAAFRAED
Awardees of the IFEA 2024 (Teaching) — School Division Awardees of the IFEA 2024 (Teaching) — Teacher Division
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KREENRIEBMHER (£2%) IFEA (Corporate)

#2189 Awards

KREENIBMHE R 1%
IFEA — Gold Award

8#%& Awardees

RRAFRE (ER) GRAE

Manulife (International) Limited

BEHEETERAE
Share for Good Foundation Limited

KREENEBVHE R —IRE
IFEA - Silver Award

1BERITHRRAT
Hang Seng Bank Limited

KREENMIBVHER %
IFEA — Bronze Award

FREISRTT (BA) BRAE
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PT. Bank Negara Indonesia (Persero) Tok,
Hong Kong Branch

BREENEMBREE
IFEA*

AEON 5887 EEM) BIR AR
AEON Credit Service (Asia) Co., Ltd.

TEHESEH
Citi

BEEEZERAE
HKMC Annuity Limited

RARBERAT
Prudential Hong Kong Limited

5B LEEERITERAR
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

BRMEEERNRBERAR

TransUnion Credit Information Services Limited

RSB RSB IBR TS ©
In alphabetical order of organisation names.
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REERIEMHER (A "FEKIERIEBUFENE) IFEA (Public/Professional Body and NGO)

4215 Awards 1542#& Awardees
SEE NI HE R -5 ERAREENFIETHE L
IFEA — Gold Award Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
Financial Education Centre
KREERIBNHE R IR BENBEREGE
IFEA - Silver Award The Boys' & Girls' Clubs Association of Hong Kong
KREENIBHHERE — AR BRGNS
IFEA — Bronze Award Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

RE=PrRRIE RKERHE )
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Healthy Budgeting Family Debt Counselling Centre

REERIEBMHFR EANFERONNES

IFEA® CFA Society Hong Kong

BEPXARZAARARRR
Department of Japanese Studies,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong

HEREERAT
Happy-Retired Company Limited

HERNEIGE
The Hong Kong Retirement Schemes Association
BEEEE

The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention,
Hong Kong

SEEMHERES
Young Financial Planners Association

IS SRR SLIRR Y o

In alphabetical order of organisation names.
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KREERIBRHHER (H2) IFEA (Teaching)
B4 School Division

#%18 Awards 5#%& Awardees

KEERIBNH AR —F1R RIHEEYE AT 2243 (B HRIE)

IFEA - Gold Award Tai Po Old Market Public School (Plover Cove)
KEENIBMHH R —RIR REEEGIKERS

IFEA - Silver Award CNEC Lau Wing Sang Secondary School

S EE IR AR — i BEREI/NE

IFEA — Bronze Award Tseung Kwan O Government Primary School
KREENBTHER BEHEAE

IFEA* Hong Kong Metropolitan University

CERBREIENE

Yan Chai Hospital Choi Hin To Primary School

RS RERELBRFHEY

In alphabetical order of school names.

94 HREEREMBEZEZET 2024255



#HEf4H Teacher Division

#2718 Awards 18#%#& Awardees

BREENEMB B -F
IFEA - Gold Award

ERIREAL (REED)

- BREIRR L

- FFEEE

St. Paul's Convent School (Secondary Section)
— Mr Chen Kam Leung, Adrian

— MrYam Tze Kay

BB MR E R — IR
IFEA - Silver Award

N

— Dr Archimedes David Guerra
Hong Kong Baptist University
— Dr Archimedes David Guerra

KEE MBI E R %
IFEA — Bronze Award

BEHEARE

- ERERET

o SE

- BREE L

- FEFEL

The Education University of Hong Kong
— Dr Tan Weigiang

— Professor Yu Wai Mui, Christina

— Dr Law Kim Fai, Eric

— Dr Lee Kwok Wai, Ray

REENIEMHE R
IFEA*

MBREFBEHS

- BIfEERR L

Carmel Alison Lam Foundation Secondary School
— Ms Szeto Mei Yin

rEgvESLSHE
- BXRExt

- BReaiB At

- MERL+

Rhenish Church Pang Hok Ko Memorial College
— Ms Tsang Mei Ting

— Mr So Lok Pui

— Ms Cheng Pik Ying, Sylvia

RSB REXLIBRFHE
In alphabetical order of school names.
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HAIEIIH2025
RUERsER IRBAIRIE

Fe B BRI ML SRR BE BE » AR M
PR LETRENEENE - AW > BN
REZIHE > BREZERMAISE -

152025538 » ZFIFTEEERIE T
BRI LUEEEBNREENEMYE -
HPIUTRIERER BRI & TR E
HWREER—RIERN > UHAERE 1t
RERMPINES > LA HFIBREERIE
MHEER » BORATRBMBANEEE
P& wlzil) seat o

AR REEMEABHLFHERZRAR
ATRHBIE220EREENIBMHEEH
NEIR o

Hong Kong Money Month 2025
Guard Against Fraud Thrive With Resilience

With the rise of digital technology and social media,

more people are engaging in online investing and money
management. However, this also creates opportunities for
scammers to exploit victims.

In March 2025, we organised our annual flagship event,
Hong Kong Money Month (HKMM), to promote investor

and financial education in Hong Kong. Under the theme of
"Guard Against Fraud, Thrive With Resilience", a multi-media
campaign comprising a series of videos, online, social media
and outdoor advertising was launched. This campaign,
along with our investor and financial education resources,
aims to empower the public with the knowledge and skills
to identify and avoid financial fraud.

The IFEC, along with partners and stakeholders, offered
more than 220 investor and financial education activities
and resources during the month for various segments of the
public.

88

Qf% B HESS

™
O\%‘o stakeholders supported 220+ |(1:

FEHIE Key figures'

20,600,000+ () Zi2%x% 23,000+ [

ME R ERH

webpage views

. .
LN BLRREENEHRER
activities and resources
offered to the public

U BIBEE2025%3831H o FEHIEERIZIR | Facebook * Instagram ~ YouTube ~ Google Ads & Google Analytics
Figures as of 31 March 2025. Main sources of figures: Facebook, Instagram, YouTube, Google Ads and Google Analytics
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KREGREBIEMHA2025MEREE)
The IFEC's key initiatives in Hong Kong Money Month 2025

—RIERBHE RO LFRFE iR
BARHBRRFLEE o

A series of videos featuring prevalent
online fraud tactics to educate the
public on how to protect themselves
against fraud.

SRR S A LR - SBAR B RIRIRF
EHRRENDF

An online talk co-hosted with the

o
58

Insurance Authority explaining the
differences between medical insurance
and critical illness insurance.

REBHBEARENNRES o

An online talk on retirement planning
featuring representatives from HKMC
Annuity Limited and The Education
University of Hong Kong.

BRRNRBNELBE  HEBFEHERLQE

HCFABEMEBEHER OIS SWE L
Mg RNEREERSE -

A webinar on virtual asset investing co-
hosted with the CFA Institute and the CFA
Society Hong Kong.

RHBEMRVBBER > NREMZEEESHRNBIE
MEREEEANS, > WA/ NENPBEESHBIEFE

RE

A series of videos covering prudent money
management habits and virtual asset basics for
students, with toolkits promoted to primary and
secondary schools.

Investor and Financial Education Council
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EHAERB2025F25IEH HKMM 2025 activity highlights

SEED Activity FiH+E Organiser(s)

98

oo

AR General Public

ML I RAEEMEGIERRERBT KE&Eg
Online talk: Retirement Planning IFEC
AXALive R ZEERTEE| AXAZZ S

AXALive Anti-Fraud Campaign

AXA Hong Kong & Macau

39+1Z MPFE—1R8E N IER FESRMaE R
First Pot of Gold in MPF and Scam Prevention

BCT

B8Rt 3RS IE S

Anti-scam social media posts

BEMAEEHEREE S

Securities and Futures Commission

B LEEEIEE - RIEEE > REMREMERE?
Social media wall game: Don't Lie to Mg, It's Not
Only About Trust

REMEABRAE
TransUnion Limited

LB | BRI EEEREIRE
Webinar: Asset Allocation for Retirement

BEIMEATBEEEEER
The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority

EELEARB SIEEHEEIEEMR
Lee Shau Kee School of Business and

Administration, Hong Kong Metropolitan
University

TrendyToo BT FR B EBEETRITEZFE
TrendyToo Financial Explorer Line Financial Smart
Talks and Chill & Cheers Carnival

B TrendyToo » HEIRTT (B BREAE

Banking TrendyToo, Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited

RFEERBEMER G AE]
Anti-money laundering microfilm
“Your Life, Your Choice”

BARALEHEM BB NMAER
Financial Intelligence and Investigation Bureau,
Hong Kong Police Force

2HMEIE) | B EH#RE LEELEE2025
Hang Seng Financial Literacy Academy -
Financial Literacy Quiz

BEAREENGETHER L

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society Financial
Education Centre

1BHEIRTT

Hang Seng Bank Limited

EHER/NEF—EsFRAL
Anti-Fraud Tips on the Interactive JPM Bot

BEREEEE

J.P. Morgan Asset Management

4L BRI RREREREE ?
Online talk: Chronic Disease and Critical IlIness.
How to Plan Health Insurance?

REEEER
Insurance Authority
wEHE

IFEC
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JEEN Activity E 48 Organiser(s)

B EE Investors

BEEE - REBHFERH

ABHK Investor Education Reels

BEEE

AllianceBernstein Hong Kong

LB RTEREEAERNEREERE BERMEDITEMES
Webinar: A Retail Investor’'s Perspective on Virtual CFA Society Hong Kong
Asset Investments CFAlZE
CFA Institute
k&g
IFEC
ETFEIE RS K&He
ETF animated videos IFEC
Endowus %% HELFE BLE
Resources — Insights blog Endowus
F/NE4E Primary and secondary school students
b A i BENBEREGE

Social Experience Game: Preparing For Your
Financial Future

The Boys' & Girls' Clubs Association of Hong Kong
HER

Education Bureau

By RENBE

Financial Planning Competition

BRNEHEGE

The Boys' & Girls' Clubs Association of Hong Kong
HER

Education Bureau

BARERERS

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

EBIEPFFHEE2025
Hong Kong Financial Literacy Championship 2025

EREB

HKEJ Education

BER

Education Bureau
BEETMEIER

Hong Kong Monetary Authority
BEHEW

Hong Kong Education City
EHEEEY

St. James’ Settlement
Visa& BB RATE

Visa Hong Kong Limited

Investor and Financial Education Council
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JEE Activity E &8 Organiser(s)

ERAFIERT BEmEE

Handy Finance HKEJ Education
ELE=)5)
Education Bureau
HETMEER
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
EEHEW
Hong Kong Education City
PREEES
St. James’ Settlement
Visa& BB RAF
Visa Hong Kong Limited

Mg/h\F ~ B/hFIFDFEM TR BEFIAE

“Rich Kid, Poor Kid" - Storytelling session Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

CGERA 30 BEFIAE

10 Lessons in Money Management Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

HSBC x JAGFRlIZE a8 & SERME B

HSBC x JA Company Programme Junior Achievement Hong Kong
ESRTRERES
The Hongkong Bank Foundation

R AElRE SFEREEHS

Money Skillz Bootcamp Young Investors Society

HHEIRRA PR SR AN 21 BITIR1T (B8) BIRAE

Unlock the knowledge in fraud prevention and Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

digital banking

IABEERAE BEMTEBES

JA Finance Park Junior Achievement Hong Kong
ERESS
DBS Foundation

B NIERF A ST BI2024- 25518 b PHIENS

Personal Finance Ambassador Programme St. James' Settlement

2024-25 Project Showcase wHEe
IFEC
EERZMEEES

HKEX Foundation

100 KREENREMBEZET 20242551



JEEN Activity E 48 Organiser(s)

(IRERBEEE) A E TR
Storytelling Parent-Child Workshop

HERERNGEMHEPL

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society —

Financial Education Centre
BEEREEN S/ S FHET TR

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society —

Nurturing Seeds Kindergarten Social Work Service
AEONEEMT (M) BIRAF

AEON CREDIT SERVICE (ASIA) CO., LTD.

E4E Youth

BT EINE BB B REE S

Building Financial Resilience: Unlocking the Power
of Sustainable Financial Literacy

(“Su FIN-LIT" Programme)

BAETABEXREHE RN

College of Professional and Continuing Education,
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Slash B & —FHEIRBVIEVHE

Slash Night — Financial Education for Slashers

BESEHE

Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
RAMREEB PR AE]

Prudential Hong Kong Limited

REFEAMRIEFHE

Financial education for young adults

BRES
HSBC

EEMEREIR
$avvy Planner Workshop

HAERCKE

Hong Kong Shue Yan University
BEEEFEHE

Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
Kr&EE

IFEC

Games 4 FinlLit—##&a% st tE
Games 4 FinLit — Game Design Competition

EEREABRTHEIESHR

HKBU School of Business
BERGARSEESN

HKBU School of Communications
SEENHERES

Young Financial Planners Association

Investor and Financial Education Council
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JEE Activity E &8 Organiser(s)

£%& Seniors

REMBREN — (RERE XA
Fraud prevention training for the elderly —
Protecting seniors from financial abuse

ZLN=5

Awesum Care
BARGMZERES
HKEX Foundation

BB RFE
Elderly Financial Literacy Workshop

BRAEERBEERTHMER
The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong,
Department of Economics and Finance

RIIER B TR — Bh 848 L 5FBR ) FIRED
Retirement Financial Education Workshop -
Online scam prevention sharing session

BEEREESERAT

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
BAEKBAEMERAT

Sun Life Hong Kong Limited
BHEEERBNHITMER

Institute for Knowledge Exchange at

The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong

AMIGOS By HKMC/ M+ —
ERTIRERE  REEAER

AMICOS By HKMC Leaflet — Protect your personal
information from phishing scams

BEEREESERAT
The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

B R TE WIRE
Seminar: Retirement Financial Planning

BEBAFELHRAT
HKMC Annuity Limited

BREMBEREFIAGIGR

SPC Wealth Management & Anti-Investment Scam

Ambassadors Training

EREA > BEEHE

Senior Police Call, Hong Kong Police Force
KvEg

IFEC

SEBEE  IRRIBRERAIZS I
Talk: Wealth Wise, Avoid Scams, Gain Insight

RE=[TREIEM K EEETL
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Healthy Budgeting
Family Debt Counselling Centre
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JEEN Activity E 48 Organiser(s)

Hfth Others

ESIEA e SHEZ
Tailored financial education course for SEN HSBC
students

ERXEH | MIRERE R Enrich HK

Ask The Experts: Think Before You Share: Expert
Advice on Protecting Yourself frorn Scams and
Fraud

BALEHEE R SFHR a0
Anti-Deception Coordination Centre, Hong Kong
Police Force

EEE B E VA EEARE

Legacy Planning for Cancer Patients

BEVHREMBEE

Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong
BEMES

Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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32k B E 5
RERK

Embrace
Technology
for a
Secure
Retirement

AERSHBIBFEN > s ERRIBHKE
EEREREE c REGRMUEEHR
BEREMEM - ERMIR » UHEBE
BERAANTHNERAKATREIBAKRE
w0 RETRERRE o

In today's digital age, preparing
for a secure financial future has
become even more important.
The investment and financial
management information, along
with the resources and tools
provided by the IFEC, aim to assist
pre-retirees and retirees to plan
for their retirement and guard
against financial scams.




A e A R
Research and Evaluation

B IR A TR B A B AR EMEN T ENEEE
REE > TEREMAERATRARTEMBSHERTHEER
1% - ZFIERNAREREMHEHHENREEREMHE
KBS > BRKREZENITFEMNEDERETREHEERM -

Our research and evaluation work is essential for
identifying gaps in financial literacy among different
segments of the population. It also enables us to

gain a deeper understanding of the attitude and
behaviour of the general public with regard to new
developments in the financial market. The research
findings we obtain help us develop targeted investor
and financial education strategies, ensuring that our
work helps people in Hong Kong better manage their
finances.
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IBETEE N ZE2024

REe-ERARKESFRERES (KAER) BEIRE
MHERERETEIR > EREREBLARNEY
BEFIKF o JR20244F » FFIET T — B NERTAE
M) BREHEEM BE N BB EM eI T E5T 815
1R T RABRERNIBER

BRI 202458 E6 BT » EARAB1S8E LUIEHE
B 5HR 71,052 F R A1SETIRNEEBER » T
FERNEE R E MBI B EITIINE 5 -

FERER
BB,  ERITATENNS » FEHEEE
BIBE K FRARISE LFHES » 2024 MBHATS

CRPAE1009) » B2022F EF.099

- BETABOBRBREE 0 H2022F02750HE

2024F/I28.69 Cmn &459) o BINSHEHN2024F

BIERBE KT EABRE ©

- EBRAEGE D B RREEABY SRR - B0 MR
TEEKTE > 5T 731.85 (RN 7355) ©

- RRESOMGERIEMEIBE » B EmERER
2024 FEBEE D HERFF0.79 G A209) o

. BPEHREIRRIRE I N 6730 FIEE6S.57 G2

10093) » EEMPRFEERA THNE KRR

BE 0 BRBIEHMEE N T - KEABEREMHE
MBAE 2022 F BRAS BBEIRRABE /15 | ABRAFAEE ©

Financial Literacy Monitor 2024

The IFEC has been regularly monitoring the
financial literacy level of the Hong Kong public
using a survey toolkit devised by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development International Network on Financial
Education (OECD/INFE). In 2024, we undertook
another wave of the survey to repeat the key
measures on financial literacy and digital financial
literacy for an updated snapshot.

Survey methodology and fieldwork execution
were kept consistent with previous rounds where
1,052 face-to-face interviews were conducted with
adults aged 18-79 via street-intercepts across 18
districts in Hong Kong from May to June 2024.

Study highlights

- The financial literacy level in Hong Kong,
evaluated through a combination of scores in
knowledge, attitude and behaviour, has been
on a rising trend. The new overall score for
2024 stood at 71.1 out of 100 and was 1.0 higher
compared with 2022.

- There was a significant increment in the
behaviour score, which increased from 27.5
in 2022 to 28.6 (out of 45) in 2024. It was the
driving force behind the enhanced overall
financial literacy level in 2024.

- Financial knowledge score, reflecting
understanding of basic financial concepts
remained high, scoring 31.8 (out of 35).

- The attitude score which measured the single
aspect of long-term planning mindset, stayed
the same as two years ago and remained at 10.7
(out of 20) in 2024.

- The overall digital financial literacy score,
which the OECD/INFE first introduced in 2022,
dropped from 67.3 to 65.5 (out of 100). The
decline was mainly driven by a decrease in
digital knowledge score which apparently was
caused by a confusion over the characteristics
of cryptocurrencies among the young adults.
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Research and Evaluation

IBATEE N ZE2024

@ R AT (0-35)

{ [ Financial Knowledge Score (0-35)
ri—0 IBEREE TS (0-20)

o o®| Financial Attitude Score (0-20)

g BERHTAIS (0-45)

A o o Financial Behaviour Score (0-45)

© FEEMAESIFTS (0-100)

0ot Overall Financial Literacy Score (0-100)

REE M AR T

BBMETRSEREENNR  BEXTA  —ERK
ZEMERTIEZ— - BFEMEET X TEREE
T LIRS EREENEEMTENES > RET—
HREF ISR 2023F#1T ©

TEAEE » HFET T —EBHAR > UIRETEREERN
MBAMMPIFHEERRERENIER - REBUIRETH
BB KRR FBEIREREBARBNEMEZSF
FRENREERAFHFHER
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Financial Literacy Monitor 2024

20194

20244
2024

20225

2019 2022

30.8 319 31.8

111 10.7 10.7
273 275 2861
691 70.1 711

Investor Knowledge and Propensity
Study

Research to understand retail investors'
knowledge, attitude and behaviour has always
been a priority at the IFEC, and we have been
conducting the “Retail Investor Study” every
two years to investigate investors’ mindset and
practices with the last study conducted in 2023.

This year, we conducted a new study to look

into retail investors’' knowledge as well as their
propensity to make prudent investing decisions,
the latter of which is based on the IFEC's
interactive “Investment Behaviour Personality
Quiz" developed in partnership with an academic
team from Hong Kong Shue Yan University,

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and The
University of Hong Kong.



TERER

- BREEHNRAMRASIREREZBIFHEERIN AR
MRS E AR - MAOKEENGER > KREHRE
MR DEIERDE - LUSED E RO F
£ o

- ABERET > 36NN HREEBINBEREEN > 2
EEERANEER] » X BB R (21%) ~ BIEBEIR
(18%) ~ #BE R FE(13%) MIEBE IR (13%) © 305 A Y
FREEEFRZHIBEBENTARE » EH41%
BrE—1E5R] -

. BEORRIBMERARNEARANS © T -
SHNTERAEEORBBPELTH - BRRAN
AT o
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HPEEFRE2ENME  REREZEHNREELIEY
HELIF > MBEFIBETED  BAREEMBHOANH
REMIEE @ EMIFHBERENRENRTERE » BHEE
ft o

Investor and Financial Education Council

Study highlights

- The IFEC's “Investment Behaviour Personality
Quiz" used 10 questions based on the Big Five
Personality Test widely used for assessing
individual personality to classify respondents
into five propensity segments with the names
indicating the core characteristics of each.

- The study revealed that 36% of surveyed
investors belonged to the Over-confidence
segment, which was the largest one, followed
by Risk Aversion (21%), Expectation of High
Return (18%), Over-reaction (13%) and Herding

(13%). Young investors aged below 30 were even

more prone to the behavioural bias of over-
confidence, with 41% falling into this segment.

- An additional 10 quiz questions were used to
assess investors' basic investment knowledge.
On average, surveyed retail investors answered
7 of the 10 questions correctly, indicating an
acceptable level of knowledge.

The way forward

We will continue to conduct robust research
for planning the IFEC's investor and financial
education initiatives, helping us accomplish
our mission of equipping the public with the
knowledge, attitude and skills necessary for
making informed investment and financial
decisions and managing money wisely.
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BiFnaERBEHERER
Collaborating with
Stakeholders and Partners

HfiEEsaa N ERZE GEBTHE - TRIRTER - #8
FURMERNSELEAZER - UHEHLEBRHENK
BEENEMBERE -

55 HPIRREBSHCESEAREAR (ESER)
HFEMBEEEUNERESFEHERZE A (BER
AEEGAR) TEREEZEGNTIF > XRKREEMEMH
BHREME > LUREARBVIERIEES -

We consult and collaborate with government agencies
and the financial services, education and community
sectors to identify the investor and financial education
needs of our target groups through our Advisory
Groups and committees.

Additionally, we represent Hong Kong in the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and

Development International Network on Financial
Education (OECD/INFE) and the International
Organization of Securities Commissions (I0SCO)
Committee on Retail Investors, sharing best practices
on investor and financial education to promote
financial literacy.
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KREEHTHRA/E

Advisory Group: Investor Education

%8 Members

%% Name #4843 Organisation

PREE 1P (BENAN) MR BB NERR

CHAN Ho Lim, Joseph 3P (Convenor) Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau
AEx BEIMABEFENEER

HO Fu Ho, Jonathan Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
=S BEEHEER

LI Chun Kit, Patrick Hong Kong Monetary Authority

XH5 EENIEEBRREREES

MAN Hoi Yee, Holly Securities and Futures Commission

BEE REERER

WONG Po Yin, Vicki Insurance Authority

HEE (BARE) CEENIEMHEEEE

YEUNG Wai Yee, Michelle Investor and Financial Education Council
(Ex-officio Member)

FREEIE (W) KEENBUMHELES

SO Hing Fai, Eric (Secretary) Investor and Financial Education Council

EHAEH2023F981HE202548H831H
The appointment term is from 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2025.
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BEIENHEHANE
Advisory Group: Financial Education for Schoolchildren

Z 8 Members

4% Name #5278 Organisation

EIEF(BEN) BETERER

LIN Chun Pong (Convenor) Hong Kong Association of the Heads of Secondary Schools
BRER HER

CHAN Hong Education Bureau

R BRENNERES

CHAN Shuk Yee, Polly Hong Kong Aided Primary School Heads Association
P8 BEAEARERNE

CHAN Wai Mun, Venus Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

BEE A LSESRITERAE

CHIU Chi Fai, William

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

R BER

HSIEN Lai Hing, Katy Education Bureau

MEEL BRAHEWERATE

Dr LAM Fung, Tenny' Hong Kong Education City Limited
ERIEEL BEHEKRE

Dr LAW Kim Fai, Eric

The Education University of Hong Kong

Z2BhEN HER
LEUNG Siu Fan Education Bureau
FRIRoR° EEBEWERAE]

NGAI Yuen Keung, Ken?

Hong Kong Education City Limited

aEEE

POON Tak Cheong, Raymond

& ORKE B STRIE ST
PricewaterhouseCoopers

=L (BRAE)®
WONG Lok Sum, Sindy
(Ex-officio Member)?

REENEVHBEERES

Investor and Financial Education Council

SN (W E)

REENEVHBEERES

Investor and Financial Education Council

CHOI Suk Mun, Anny (Secretary)

EEAEH2023F9 818 E 20255488318 » HEBIsHEARRSM ©
The appointment term is from 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2025 unless otherwise specified.
Y EH202543H38E
From 3 March 2025
2 E2024F12A15HLE
To 15 December 2024
5 H2024%F5H6HE
From 6 May 2024

112 RKREEREMBEZEY 2024255



BEAEBEBRESHA/NE

Advisory Group: Financial Education for Young Adults

Z 8 Members

%% Name #4843 Organisation

=L (BEN) KEENENHELRES

WONG Lok Sum, Sindy (Convenor)’ Investor and Financial Education Council
& B BREEE Ec N

Professor AU Kai Ming, Alan Hong Kong Metropolitan University
iRz’ BAEASM

CHAN Yat Chi? The Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts
FERigt HRBEKRS

Dr CHENG Wui Wing, Andy The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong
ERER AR HES BEREARE

Professor CHENG Yuk Shing Hong Kong Baptist University

R B2Es R m

CHUNG Chi Pan, Sammy?® Vocational Training Council

BREE HAERRKSZ

Professor HUANG Hao, Allen The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
RAFAfREUE BEKRE

Professor KWAN Alan Paul The University of Hong Kong

FaitiEt BAEBM_ KRS

Dr LEE Shu Kam Hong Kong Shue Yan University
R BAWHAS

Professor MA Yue City University of Hong Kong

SXRPEL BAEPX KRS

Dr MOK Ka Ming, Edwin The Chinese University of Hong Kong
ERME(C S E HERETHER

PONG Wai Yan, Louis

Employers' Federation of Hong Kong

{EERER2023F981HE2025E8 8310 » 45555 ©

The appointment term is from 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2025 unless otherwise specified.

1

H2024F 5868

From 6 May 2024
20244108 8HE

From 8 October 2024
202449827 Hie

From 27 September 2024
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Collaborating with Stakeholders and Partners

SEAEBMEEHANE
Advisory Group: Financial Education for Young Adults

%8 Members

4% Name #5278 Organisation

BREHE W)

Professor POON Ping Hong, Simpson* Vocational Training Council

JHimigt SBIEBET A

Dr WONG Lap Bun, George The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
wkiEigEER BEHERE

Professor YU Wai Mui, Christina The Education University of Hong Kong
B F5R° BERESEM

YUEN Tsz Yin, Joyce® The Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts
/SR EEAR

Professor ZHAO Xiao Feng Linghan University

MZESH (R ) © REENEVHELZES

LAM Yik Tin, Miranda (Secretary)® Investor and Financial Education Council
EhE GE)” KREENREVHEEES

POON Yuen Shun, Vincent (Secretary)’ Investor and Financial Education Council

EHAH2023 69810 E202568H318 » 55518 o
The appointment term is from 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2025 unless otherwise specified.
“ E2024%F9826H1E
To 26 September 2024
5 FE2024%3827H1E
To 27 March 2024
& H2024F7R1HEE
From 1July 2024
7 E2024%F6H30HLE
To 30 June 2024

114 REEREMBEZETY 20242551



EBATRREEMBEEN)E

Advisory Group: Financial Education for Working Adults and Seniors

Z 8 Members

%% Name #4843 Organisation

RAAIE MH - 0P (BEAN) BBET KRS

KWAN Chuk Fai MH, 3P (Convenor) The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
iy BEIMABEFENEER

CHAN Yuen Ling, Florence Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
K ERER HRIBET RS

Professor CHUI Wing Hong, Eric The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
LIP Ry BEEHE

CHENG Ka Chun, Aaron Hong Kong Police Force

2me BEREENS

LAU Pui Ling, Selina Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
28T EBERERAT

LEONG Ling Chi, Daniel' HKMC Annuity Limited

2inE BEERERNE

LEUNG Yuen Ching, Cindy Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
2R RE=P7

LOW Chen Yang, Joe Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

SRR HEEEKRS

Professor MOK Ka Ho, Joshua The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong
ELALE REZERBHE

WONGC Hung Hung, Maura Senior Citizen Home Safety Association
ABR EBERERAT

YUNG Wai Sun, Sunny? HKMC Annuity Limited

B (BRARE)? KREERENHEELES

WONG Lok Sum, Sindy Investor and Financial Education Council
(Ex-officio Member)®

BE (M) KREERENHEELES

POON Yuen Shun, Vincent (Secretary)* Investor and Financial Education Council
FREEHE (i) ° CEENIEMHEEEE

YAU Kwan Pang (Secretary)® Investor and Financial Education Council

EHAEH2023F9B1H E2025548831H » RFBIsERERS ©
The appointment term is from 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2025 unless otherwise specified.
v EH2025818281E

From 2 January 2025
2 FE2024F1281381k

To 13 December 2024
3 H202445H6HE

From 6 May 2024
4 H2024F781HEE

From 13July 2024
> F2024%6H30H1E

To 30 June 2024
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e hEEE
Research and Evaluation Committee
Z 8 Members

4% Name #5278 Organisation

ik (B&EAN) KREENBUHELES
LI Yuen Chow, Dora (Convenor) Investor and Financial Education Council
ESIEII= FEIRTT (B8 BIR AR
CHOW Kwok Cheong, Arnold Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
BEIKERHIE BEETAEEALSHER
Professor CHUI Wing Hong, Eric Department of Applied Social Sciences,
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
BIREF IR EARARBHETERTEITHRER
Professor LOU Wei Qun, Vivian Department of Social Work and Social Administration,
The University of Hong Kong
{RERIRER ERPNASHETIEZR
Professor NGAI Sek Yum, Steven Department of Social Work,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong
BEHER ERABEAZHEREA
Professor YU Wai Mui, Christina Social Sciences Department,

The Education University of Hong Kong

EHAN2024F4B1HE2026%F3H8318 °
The appointment term is from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026.
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Aith 28
HEIBATeen] 58

1R2024F7R » HFIZFHEBREETR
AR Teens 518 > BEEIREN—XREE
BTy 0 LR ESHESFNPESH
BERZET 5 B THREERBENAEH
BIF - E2EHE > RARRERHEMFT
BV -

Local engagement
Strive and Rise Programme

In July 2024, we supported a day tour for the mentees of the
HKSAR Government's “Strive and Rise Programme”. The tour
included a visit to the Securities and Futures Commission,
where the mentees learnt about the roles and operations of
the regulatory body. During the visit, we provided financial
management tips to the youth mentees.

BMZFEBFRBFN
[HtRIBE Teens 581 > REtEI22
BN—RIBEEEIRERE) - 28
TEEHYERE SRR ZHE o

We supported a day tour
for the mentees of the
HKSAR Government's
“Strive and Rise
Programme” organised

by Everbright Securities
International.

BREQAFNBHAFRBENSN L L HEEBER R BN HEIEHRE -

IFEC Manager of Innovation and Partnerships Ms Anny Choi at a financial management seminar

organised by the Hong Kong Police Force.

ERAERE

BMREBEBRGE  BEBABNRAER
BIREKEEMIEMHE c 112024488 »
BM2EHRBERERBERNTHEER
EBEE > BBIB0OREHRAENEHNHEEEDN
il o F2024F128 » REGEREAENR
RS M BET Y (ES) REM
BB GFEEMBERENER -

Hong Kong Police Force

We collaborated with the Hong Kong Police Force to deliver
investor and financial education for the Force members and
their families. In August 2024, we shared our insights on
financial management with more than 900 Force members at
their Financial Management Seminar organised by the Service
Quality Wing. In December 2024, the IFEC team met with the
Personnel Wing to discuss ongoing collaborations in promoting
financial well-being through its publication “OffBeat” and other
channels.
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HERNERHEBRIEEEE
(2023/24)

HRERETHEREMN B HE 2R
BhEt 21 (2023/24) 2 R B 2K — E ki
FEE  METE 2 — © FR2024F 128 » BED
4BASIB Ak & R AR AR B IS B A A
2 ARBEBBSOBMBRNARNBREY
HIEMH B EINETR » UIBBIP 2 MG
BEHBIBRHE -

Education Bureau “Financial Education School
Award Scheme” (2023/24)

We were invited to serve as one of the panel judges for the
“Financial Education School — Active Promotion Award” of
the “Financial Education School Award Scheme” (2023/24),
launched by the Education Bureau. In December 2024, IFEC
General Manager Ms Dora Li attended the prize presentation
ceremony cum awarded schools’ sharing, where she spoke
to representatives from over 80 schools about the IFEC's
financial education programmes and resources that support
secondary school teachers in delivering financial education

to students.

\

BEEREETHENLTHREHBERENMN BN A B ERE
BYEt8) ) (2023/24) ARAZEAAE ©

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li at the “Financial
Education School Award Scheme” (2023/24) Prize
Presentation Ceremony organised by the Education
Bureau.

HEERARENEENERBRNAGRE o
Group photo taken with guests and the awarded
schools during the prize presentation ceremony.

~
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BEHIEE2024 Learning & Teaching Expo 2024

F2024F128 » BFVEBD A TEEYIEE In December 2024, we were invited to conduct a seminar
2024 » M ZBEEMEBRMIERE > FERTRB themed “Enhancing Students’ Financial Literacy with
ERE2EFSNERIEARENRE NI Extended Learning Activities and Resources” for teachers at
BEJ1) o TEBE L REERNRAHBEET the Learning & Teaching Expo 2024. During this event,
KBESMIEMHEER « stB8IUNIEEEEES  the IFEC representatives showcased to teachers on the
HEREE > LUIRASENERENIEREE IFEC's financial education resources and programmes,

730 including the IFEC FinEd Hub, to enhance financial literacy

among students and their families.

KRG PEEARFIEBAGEMN LT (B) URAIF RBHEEREENMR LT () » T2EAHEE2024) LRTRESGNEVHEE
RN LSRN B RRE o

IFEC Head of Corporate Communications and Special Projects Ms Manning Lam (right) and Manager of Innovation and
Partnerships Ms Anny Choi (left) showcased the IFEC's financial education resources and the IFEC FinEd Hub at the
Learning & Teaching Expo 2024.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2024-25
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REE2EFVFEKREIRE National Security Youth Ambassadors Training
Scheme
HR20255F28 » HMESBRNEBITEE In February 2025, we were invited by the HKSAR

ATBERZE2EHVERE)IEE)R1TEE o Government to conduct a talk for the “National Security

2HEBECERB20EEEST VO EFIREEHN Youth Ambassadors Training Scheme”. Participants included

8L REENIEHSF - BENARE secondary students, tertiary students and young working

EEEIER  CEEEMKGEZENIENTA adults from the 20 Youth Uniformed Groups in Hong Kong.

HER o Our presentation focused on prudent money management,
credit management, and the IFEC’s tools and resources on
money management.

BREEREXARERLZES
DEREIRITIERBEE o
The IFEC
representative
delivered a money
management talk to

a group of “National
Security Youth
Ambassadors”.
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KREE—BEARBTABHERRKREE RIEME
BREMEFRFEVIME IR SABERE
MY BEREUANEREESERTERESE
EZB8g o

REAFRERER (KEHER)
iz Edine s ek

REGRCETHEN L L RHESEBERE
MEBBREEAZEGERE » UKBFEEE
BYENNAFESR TR NME » RFERE
BEZEGRLNTPERER ) DFEE
BEREERIEMHENERE -

2024458

SRR EE N TR/

RERBEIEFEHEIL LR A MBS IR
YR RENRE LS SRR ER > T
EREZGHNMTERNEBESTFABNGE
MHBE T EEE

2024%F6H

tt5RIEBRAE TRV

REZG2ME L% > SRt FIEME
2024 IR ERBVAEER - W B FARNEMBED
=R BERTHEEERS o

202449H
BEMHHERNTXEREFE

REQAFNBHEFRERRZ O TRE
TLETHELDZR BN REGRHBULE
RENEMHE > LURENHREEAE S
Hp—EEZEDE °

20244108

BIEEN R AIFHEE R T(F/

RESBCEFTHEM L L ERBIRIIFEN
HEE > MBESOLREZERAEEEN
K& NMEBEEERAIFESROMNH &
B~ BFNTANAETAZERRER U
NTRNMEBURRERRED - REGKREE
HE NG ERARRESRELLTRE LD
EEBERBERIGEMEN T ENRE
BENEVHEZRNER

International engagement

The IFEC has been representing Hong Kong during
meetings with global investor and financial education
stakeholders, including the OECD/INFE and IOSCO
Committee on Retail Investors.

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development International Network on
Financial Education (OECD/INFE)

As a member of the Advisory Board of the OECD/INFE

and as co-lead of the Working Group on Financial Literacy
and Sustainable Finance, IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li
was invited to present at various meetings and panel
discussions on Hong Kong's investor and financial education
developments throughout the year.

May 2024
Working Group on Digital Financial Literacy

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li spoke at the virtual
workshop on digital financial literacy related to digital
payments. The presentation highlighted the findings of the
IFEC's research and Hong Kong's experience with digital
financial education for young people.

June 2024
Working Group on Global Money Week (GMW)

The IFEC participated in the virtual meeting to discuss
lessons learnt from GMW 2024 and shared insights on
financial education topics for young people in preparation
for the upcoming event.

September 2024

Annual Meeting of the Technical Assistance
Project on Financial Education

IFEC Head of Innovation and Partnerships Ms Sindy Wong
conducted an online sharing session at this meeting. Her
presentation focused on the IFEC's financial education
programmes for vulnerable groups, citing the Anti-Scam
Programme for Seniors as one of the case studies.

October 2024

Working Group on Financial Literacy and
Sustainable Finance

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li chaired the 5" Working
Group meeting attended by over 30 representatives from
various jurisdictions, focusing on the development of a survey
instrument to measure knowledge, attitude, preferences

and behaviour related to sustainable finance, along with

a roadmap for the Working Group. IFEC Head of Investor
Education and Stakeholder Engagements Ms Michelle Yeung
also spoke during the session about the latest developments
in Hong Kong regarding investor and financial education on
sustainable finance and financial literacy.
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2024104
HHISEMEEN TF/ R

REQREETHEUNL L EHST/ORIE
NHER HEERBZEREEER - §
ROUENBEENNS > ABRRERESMN
MR~ BEEERENSERME  NEH
HEEE S AR TEREEZESTNRNE
B BBETIABHETERILRERESE
NBEHREXBHRING ENEREEE
SEETHTEREEREENTARENZ
RERRPEREZ) I HFAEER o

2024%FEMA

HHREEEE RITZEE8ER
REHBEIZIEIA B MLZ(OECD/
INFE-OJK) &% > ENe&E R

REGREETHEN LT HELENEZEED
BNEMEEE ST » MR LIBMEERA
HEBERENIERLES - TLEHEEZEN)
HeTwmT > DETREZGIZEREEM
R » URAEAFERETENREEHN
BIfEe

October 2024
Working Group on Digital Financial Literacy

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li chaired the 16" Working
Group meeting attended by representatives from various
jurisdictions, featuring a workshop on crypto assets,
including presentations on related academic research, case
studies from member jurisdictions, and updates from IOSCO
Committee on Retail Investors. Professor Eric Chui, Head and
Chair Professor of Social Work and Criminology of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, presented the findings of the
IFEC-commissioned “Behavioural Science Study on Investor
Behaviour in the Virtual Asset Markets: Heuristics in Virtual
Assets Investment Decision-Making” at the meeting.

November 2024

Advisory Board meeting, Technical Committee
meetings and OECD/INFE-OJK Conference in
Bali, Indonesia

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li attended the Advisory
Board meeting, Technical Committee meetings and spoke
at the Conference on "“Empowering Consumers through
Financial Education”. Ms Li presented at the panel
discussion, sharing insights from the IFEC's “Retail Investor
Study” and related investor education efforts on sustainable
investing.

INFE-OJK) &% ©

OECD/INFE-OJK Conference held in Bali.

122 BREERNEBMBEZEET 2024255

BEEREFHEML LT (ED) RRBERE « BAFIRBEN
HE > SNEEERTHESERBRREMBEREE(OECD/

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li (second from left)
and speakers from Indonesia, Italy and Japan at the




BEREFEHEREETHEE
(EPFEEE S AE )

2024%6H
@@E?Eﬁ'@% AEEREEZETG

g5 MEMFRGEK

RERBCETHEI L T HFREEESE
HTERTELZSG(CBERER) F& U
NREREE - SRBANERKREEENT
ENEER > R TEREEEANNTEM
B2 AETSHENRTRRE - ¥R HEE
Tt BN EE RMIEVHBEEE R
&fl o

The International Organization of Securities
Commissions (I0SCO)

June 2024

IOSCO Committee on Retail Investors meeting
in Colombo, Sri Lanka

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li attended the IOSCO
Committee on Retail Investors (Committee 8) meeting and
Working Group Meetings on Crypto Assets, Finfluencers

and World Investor Week. Discussions focused on key

issues facing retail investors, including market turmoil and
financial scams. Participants in the meetings also exchanged
information on their recent investor and financial education
initiatives.

RGBTV EREESHES CeRERTH » 2METHTER
BEAHMIEME  URKREENREVHBEEERRARDE ©
Participants in the IOSCO Committee 8 meeting held

in Colombo discussed key issues facing retails investors
and exchanged information on their recent investor and
financial education initiatives.

REZERZEBEENHR2HATE BRTHCSAREF BV A BERERTEE® S
Representatives from various jurisdictions attended the OECD/INFE Technical Committee

meetings held in Bali.
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BEREERAATERBEERZET
g% CARAERE

BB E R AMCORE R RN LRBE
17 REGRICBTHULTNREERE
R R R BB e L T E R
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ith Stakeholders and Partners

November 2024

IOSCO Committee on Retail Investors meeting
in Sao Paulo, Brazil

The IOSCO Committee 8 meeting was held in Sao Paulo.
IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li and Head of Investor
Education and Stakeholder Engagements Ms Michelle Yeung
presented Hong Kong's activities for World Investor Week
2024 at the roundtable discussion. The meeting also included
discussions on the roadmap of Committee 8 and the
structure of various working groups, such as Working Group
on World Investor Week and Working Group on Crypto
Assets. Representatives from various jurisdictions shared
their work on financial scams and the collective efforts to
combat these schemes.

BERWEBEIHEUZ LM
KREEHB RIBIERAGRAER
BRI THEERRESR
THRERESESHEMCeERE
285 AEBRERKRE
FIB2024 B A EEN B RE
IFEC General Manager
Ms Dora Li and Head

of Investor Education
and Stakeholder
Engagements Ms
Michelle Yeung attended
the IOSCO Committee

8 meeting in Sao Paulo,
where they presented on
Hong Kong's activities
for World Investor Week

2024.

—_ U
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Bt HRTEREEERET
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REGEKBEmMNZ TR EEHE M
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March 2025

IOSCO Committee on Retail Investors meeting
in Madrid, Spain

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li and Head of Investor
Education and Stakeholder Engagements Ms Michelle Yeung
attended the IOSCO Committee 8 meeting in Madrid held
in March 2025, where Ms Li showcased the IFEC FinEd Hub
at the forum. The meeting covered Committee 8's work plan
for 2025-26, including new topics such as the promotion of
investor resilience and investor education on risks related to
the proliferation of artificial intelligence.

BRESHRKEFHMIL L
M EEHE R IBIERR
REBRIEZLTHRERES
EEETHEREESAE
BCoEBEEHE -

IFEC General Manager
Ms Dora Li and Head
of Investor Education
and Stakeholder
Engagements Ms
Michelle Yeung at the
|OSCO Committee 8
meeting in Madrid.

ﬁ—
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OECD/INFE and IOSCO surveys

During the year, the IFEC contributed to a number of surveys
and reports initiated by the OECD/INFE and IOSCO, sharing
investor and financial education initiatives and research
findings in Hong Kong with the international community.

- OECD/INFE Surveys on
— Digital Payments
— Financial Literacy
— Crypto Assets

- 10OSCO

— Draft report for Working Group on Crypto Asset

— Resource Paper for Regulators to Raise Investor
Awareness of Online Harm

— Retail Investor Coordination Group’s reports on
1. Finfluencers
2.Digital Engagement Programme
3.Copy Trading
4 Fractional Trading

Others

In September 2024, a visit to the IFEC FinEd Hub was
arranged for the overseas delegation of 17 members from the
Indonesia Banking Development Institute (LPPI). During the
visit, investor and financial education for different segments

with topics such as money management, making informed
investment decisions and anti-scam were introduced to

the delegates through immersive learning experience.

Best practices sharing was exchanged on the promotion of
investor and financial education between the IFEC and LPPI.

BRELUTRA 2T 8BRS T RFHARMENE
BEENEBUHE » FTERSSEEE - FHE
RIBRIEERTE » UNIRERES - KEHH
LPPITRA M T (REREE MEMHENRE
% o

HKMBEEIRITEERE
BE(LPPI)/BIMURE ZHE
2ERZOEMYEER
BB o

We hosted a visit for
an overseas delegation
from the LPPI at the
IFEC FinEd Hub.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Principal place of business

Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has
its registered office and principal place of business at 54/F,
One Island East, 18 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the IFEC are to lead financial
literacy in Hong Kong by promoting and delivering free and
impartial financial education resources and programmes to
equip people with the skills to make well-informed financial
decisions; the IFEC leads the Financial Literacy Strategy to
create a conducive environment for stakeholders to deliver
more quality financial education to various segments of the
Hong Kong population.

Financial statements

The financial performance of the IFEC for the year ended
31 March 2025 and the financial position of the IFEC as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 134 to 153.
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Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Dawes, Victor, SC, BBS (Chairman)

Auyeung Pak Kuen, Rex, GBS, JP Retired on 18 October 2024
Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher, GBS, SBS, JP

Cheung Wan Ching, Clement, GBS, JP Retired on 20 Novemlber 2024
Ho Fu Ho, Jonathan

Lau Chung Kin, Clement
Lee Chi Kee, Trevor
Leung Sze Ho, Louis

Li Yuen Chow, Dora

Ng Ying Kei, Archie
Shek Ka Lai, Clara

Yu Wai Mui, Christina

Appointed on 21 November 2024

Appointed on 2 April 2024

Appointed on 19 October 2024

Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the IFEC is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except for a contract of employment with Ms Li Yuen Chow,
Dora, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the IFEC, or any of its holding company or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the IFEC
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been appointed as auditor of
the IFEC, in place of PricewaterhouseCoopers.

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Dawes, Victor, SC, BBS
Chairman

9 May 2025
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Independent auditor’s report

To the sole member of Investor and Financial Education Council

(REBEMRLNERERQE)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Investor and
Financial Education Council (IFEC) set out on pages 134 to
153, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2025, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and statement of cash flows for

the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the IFEC as at 31 March 2025,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (HKSASs) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of
the IFEC in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matter

The financial statements of the IFEC for the year ended 31
March 2024 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements on 9 May 2024.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those
charged with governance for the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the IFEC's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the IFEC or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the IFEC's financial reporting process.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 202425 3]
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.

We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the IFEC's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt on the IFEC's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that

a material uncertainty exists, we are required to

draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the IFEC to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor's report is Ha, Hong Yiu Vicov
(practicing certificate number: PO6612).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

9 May 2025
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

B E2025543831H L E (81 : o)
For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B 5 2025 2024
Note $ $
WA Income
REFMAEEHER Recoveries from the Securities
ZEFWEINHIE 2(c) 79,633,153 72,181,481  and Futures Commission
% Expenses
AEEH 4 36,905,193 34,534,999 Staff costs
HEER 31,503,397 28,162,911 Education programmes
WANER S Z H Premises expenses
itk 2,272,800 2,272,800 Rent
i EEENHEM 928,843 843,579 Rates, management fees and others
-V Depreciation/amortisation
EE&E 6 1,926,888 665,924  Fixed assets
EREEE 9 542,856 452368  Right-of-use asset
G 9 30,619 37,094 Finance costs
Hhz 5 5,522,557 5,211,806 Other expenses

79,633,153 72,181,481

FERAES - — Result for the year before taxation
I8 3 - — Taxation
FEXERZEKEEEE Result and total comprehensive income

- - for the year

FIZOBEEFISIENR IS A FRIEFFELEE The notes on pages 139 to 153 form part of these financial
R—=L45 o statements.
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Statement of financial position

72025438318 (81 : HT)

As at 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

fsE 2025 2024
Note $ $
ERBIEE Non-current assets
BE&E 6 4,718,033 6,489,686 Fixed assets
ERAEEE 9 633,332 1,176,188 Right-of-use asset
HERE 229,041 229,041 Deposit for lease
5,580,406 7,894,915
MMEE Current assets
e NFENTRIE 468,986 481,295 Deposits and prepayments
RITIRE 12,869,466 16,619,731 Cash at bank
13,338,452 17,101,026
Bk =Y =] Current liabilities
FE st & B & M FE (T I8 8 13,232,565 15,490,864 Accrued charges and other payables
FEIEE M E B RER Amount due to the Securities and Futures
ZEEgHNNIE 7 4,771,186 8,120,589  Commission
HEaE 9 510,852 469,381 Lease liability
18,514,603 24,080,834
mEnAaERE (5,176,151)  (6,979,808) Net current liabilities
BEGERREEE 404,255 915,107 Total assets less current liabilities

Investor and Financial Education Council

Annual Report 2024-25
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Statement of financial position

R2025%3H31H (81 : &)
As at 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MisE 2025 2024
Note $ $
ERENER Non-current liabilities
HeasE 9 87,605 598,457 Lease liability
&R 10 316,650 316,650 Provision for reinstatement cost
404,255 915,107
BEFE - — Net assets

FR2025FE5 00 HESER/ZETFA %Y, 0  Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

WH T ALRREE on 9 May 2025 and signed on its behalf by
#7385 > SC> BBS =k Dawes, Victor, SC, BBS Li Yuen Chow, Dora
*E BF Chairman Director

FIZ0OEEFISIEHMNMEERMFEMREREEE  The notes on pages 139 to 153 form part of these financial
B—&p5 o statements.
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Statement of cash flows

HZE2025438318 IEFE (B : B7T)
For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2025 2024
$ $
EREEFSIBNIRERE Cash flows from operating activities
FEEE - — Result for the year
Fh A EIEEH VTR © Adjustments for:
e HiE-—EEEE 1,926,888 665924  Depreciation/amortisation — Fixed assets
TE—FREEE 542,856 452368  Depreciation — Right-of-use asset
RRE A 30,619 37,094  Finance costs
HERBEEEEBX 81 - Loss on disposal of fixed assets
2,501,174 1,155,386
RS EIEM - (1161) Increase in right-of-use asset
BENRFENRIEN Decrease/(increase) in deposits and
A (Eh0) 12,309 (172,612)  prepayments
FEST & A R B FUER (Decrease)/increase in accrued charges and
G,/ s&hn (2,258,299) 394,749  other payables
FEUR FE(T 385 M EAE 75 Change in amount due from/to the Securities
ERSESMRIEMES (3,349,403) 14,005277  and Futures Commission
(AR REEEEHN Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
REFEHE (3,094,219) 15,381,639  activities
RETEFSIRMNHAERE Cash flow from investing activity
BABREEE (156,046) (4,859,010) Fixed assets purchased
BRI & EERIR S B (156,046) (4,859,010) Net cash used in investing activity
BB EEIFRS I BMVIRERE Cash flow from financing activities
HENRNEAETER (469,381) (242,906) Principal element of lease payments
HENTFIETR (30,619) (37,094) Interest element of lease payments
AREEHNIRE 35 (500,000) (280,000) Net cash used in financing activities

Investor and Financial Education Council
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RERER
Statement of cash flows
B E2025FE3831HIEEE (B8l © BT)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2025 2024
$ $
HERERAEEBFEEN Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
GR) . ¥Em (3,750,265) 10,242,629  cash equivalents
FERBRRENER Cash and cash equivalents
HEEE 16,619,731 6,377,002  at the beginning of the year
FEKERAERER Cash and cash equivalents
R&EER 12,869,466 16,619,731  at the end of the year
2025 2024
$ $
RERERREIEEHN Analysis of the balance of cash and cash
EERO equivalents
RITIRE 12,869,466 16,619,731 Cash at bank

BIVEERISSENNER AV BHREE
—&B5 o
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Notes to the financial statements

HZE2025438318 IEFE (B : B7T)
For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

M K F BEED
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Bo

KREZEE(ERMA) NBEXETR » &
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BEAGEER
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(a)

Investor and Financial Education Council

Status and principal activities

Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) was
incorporated on 19 October 2012 in Hong Kong under
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as a company
limited by guarantee and not having a share capital.
The address of its registered office is 54/F, One Island
East, 18 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the IFEC are to lead financial
literacy in Hong Kong by promoting and delivering
free and impartial financial education resources and
programmes to equip people with the skills to make
well-informed financial decisions; the IFEC leads the
Financial Literacy Strategy to create a conducive
environment for stakeholders to deliver more quality
financial education to various segments of the Hong
Kong population.

Under the provisions of the IFEC's Articles of Association,
every member shall, in the event of the IFEC being
wound up, contribute to the assets of the IFEC an
amount not exceeding $10. At 31 March 2025, the IFEC
had 1 member.

Material accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards, a
collective term which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted

in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the Companies
Ordinance). Material accounting policies adopted by
the IFEC are set out below.
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Notes to the financial statements

B E2025F3831H ILEE (BB :

B7T)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

(b)
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(a)

(b)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards that are mandatorily effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the IFEC. None of these amendments have a
material effect on how the IFEC's results and financial
position for the current or prior periods are prepared or
presented.

We have not applied any new or amendments

to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are not yet
effective for the current period. We anticipate that the
application of these standards will have no material
impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Basis of preparation

We prepare these financial statements on a going
concern basis notwithstanding that the stated current
liabilities are in excess of the stated current assets at
31 March 2025. The Securities and Futures Commission
(SFC), the ultimate holding entity, has given an
undertaking to continue to provide such financial
assistance as is necessary to maintain the IFEC as a
going concern.

We have prepared these financial statements using
the historical cost as the measurement basis. No
statement of changes in equity has been prepared as
the IFEC was incorporated in Hong Kong under the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) as a company limited
by guarantee and not having a share capital.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Investor and Financial Education Council

Material accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

We prepare the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS Accounting Standards which require
management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies

and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. We make estimates and associated
assumptions based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

We review the estimates and underlying assumptions
on an ongoing basis. We recognise revisions to
accounting estimates in the period in which the
estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Recoveries from the Securities and Futures
Commission

We recognise recoveries from the SFC over time for the
expenditure incurred by the IFEC on an accrual basis.

Employee benefits

We make accruals for salaries and allowances, annual
leave and contributions to defined contribution
schemes in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Other benefits for services
received are accrued when a contractual or constructive
obligation arises for the IFEC.

The IFEC operates in Hong Kong and is obliged to

pay long services payment (LSP) to employees under
certain circumstances as specified in the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. We recognise the past service
cost by estimating the present value of LSP with a
number of parameters and assumptions with reference
to actuarial valuations being carried out annually.

The change of the LSP is recognised as part of the

staff costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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HE2025F3831HILEE (B © FHBow)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(e)

EXREFHE®

EE&E
HPREEEERELMANFRR
e RMERRERRE (3 RN
2(k))9iR o FEE A B IE R Hi B
BEREENBANRS - REGERE
EERFIE > F IR T AR ESHE AR
T I U E AT AR S R EM
EEWmRA

(e)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Fixed assets

We state fixed assets at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortisation and any impairment losses
(see note 2(k)). Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
We charge depreciation/amortisation to the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
from the point at which the asset is ready for use as
follows:

HEEFHRETRE SENIZEZHELE Leasehold improvements 5 years or, if shorter, the
R > ENHEITHE life of the respective
& leases

RIS &S 5 Furniture and fixtures 5 years

NS i 5% Office equipment 5 years

EERRS 45 Computer application systems 4 years

(EPNE YN/ 34 Personal computers and 3years

software

HPAREEREEEEENHERRAX
IEINE BB E & A R BV B B
IR BREEEENHERAXGIAZEE
ERREE o HFIFE BN E
EREEREMEEE@RAERS
Setthe

HPERENHEREEERBRESL
ByiEm o PR REE N EMRSTFERA
MREEZ BB ETREE - WHREE T
EHMERE NEM B E UG R T UE

=5
e ©

HPEESEEESHREREZEEN
TR EENRERMRILFHAE (WE
B) c ARBREENIREEARNEMGSE]
WrlEl 228 - ZIRE ERIRE(EE S ILED
AR = H P UR (] BER o
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We capitalise subsequent expenditure only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the fixed assets. We recognise all other expenditure in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an expense as incurred.

We recognise gains or losses arising from the
retirement or disposal of an item of fixed assets, being
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the
date of retirement or disposal.

We review the assets’ residual values and useful

lives and adjust, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset's carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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Investor and Financial Education Council

Material accounting policies (continued)
Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the IFEC.

Lease liabilities included fixed lease payments less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payment
based on an index or a rate, amounts expected to

be payable under residual value guarantees and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The
lease liabilities are initially measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted

at the IFEC's incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date. The lease payments are allocated
between principal and finance cost. The finance cost
is charged to profit or loss using the incremental
borrowing rate on the remaining balance of the lease
liabilities for each period. The lease liabilities are
reduced by an amount equal to the lease payments
made less the finance costs charged for that period.

The right-of-use assets are measured at the amount
equal to the initial measurement of the lease

liability, adjusted for any prepaid lease payments,
lease incentives received, any initial direct costs or
reinstatement provisions relating to that lease. The
right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of
the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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Notes to the financial statements

B E2025FE3831HIEEE (B8l © BT)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(9)

Material accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, we
consider that the following are related parties of the
IFEC:

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person'’s
family, is related to the IFEC if that person:

(i)

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the IFEC;

has significant influence over the IFEC; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the IFEC or the IFEC's parent.

An entity is related to the IFEC if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

The entity and the IFEC are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture

of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the IFEC
or an entity related to the IFEC.
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2.

Material accounting policies (continued)

(g) Related parties (continued)

(h)

(i)

Investor and Financial Education Council

(b) An entity is related to the IFEC if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(Vi)

a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the IFEC or to the IFEC's

parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment
losses.

We assess on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses (ECL) associated with the IFEC's financial
assets that are carried at amortised cost. We perform
impairment assessments using the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk by comparing the risk of a default as at the
reporting date and the initial recognition date.
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Notes to the financial statements

B E2025FE3831HIEEE (B8l © BT)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(i)

0)

(k)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, we compare the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date

of initial recognition. In making this assessment, we
consider both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

We consider an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the IFEC, in full.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

We write off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Impairment of non-financial assets

We review the carrying amounts of the IFEC's assets

at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, we estimate the asset's
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its net
selling price and value in use. We recognise in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the recoverable amount as an impairment
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.
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Investor and Financial Education Council

Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

We reverse an impairment loss in respect of an asset in
a subsequent period if the circumstances and events
that are objectively linked to the write down or write-
off cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that
the new circumstances and events will persist for the
foreseeable future. We reverse an impairment loss only
to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does

not exceed the carrying amount that we should have
determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, if we
had not recognised any impairment loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

We recognise a provision in the statement of financial
position when the IFEC has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be estimated
reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, we disclose the obligation as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of the
outflow of economic benefits is remote. We also
disclose possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence

of one or more future events as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Taxation

(@) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the IFEC did not have any taxable profit.

(b) There is no deferred tax liability or unrecognised
deferred tax assets.
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HE2025F3831H LLFE (B : #Jr)
For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4, \EEH 4. Staff costs
2025 2024
$ $
e M EHAnEF 35,076,723 32,498,032 Salaries and other benefits
BIRETEHFR 1,828,470 2,036,967 Retirement scheme contributions

36,905,193 34,534,999

RIR (R BVER)) 5383 &M AR E) (3K Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
BEFEMRER) RO H622CEFH2EP 383(1) of the Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
IR > ESMEIHENT - Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622C) are as follows:

2025 2024
$ $
EEEE - — Directors’ fee
e R REYH = 2,269,080 2,236,320 Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
SN 428,500 499,160 Discretionary pay
IRIRETEIER 170,181 160,510 Retirement scheme contributions

2,867,761 2,895,990

EEMERHEREEEREERRANR Directors’ emoluments are for services in connection
75 o with the management of the affairs of the IFEC.
5. HhzH 5. Other expenses
2025 2024
$ $
TZ BN & 209,080 217,197 Auditor's remuneration
— RN EREZ NERRER 501,326 180,834 General office and insurance
Bl AR 3,045,425 2,874,908 Information and systems services
EENEMRBER 936,635 994,663 Professional and other services
SENEINET 770,792 918,724 Publicity and external relations
BEEl A 3 58,488 25,480 Training and development
HERBEEEEBX 81 - Loss on disposal of fixed assets
5,522,557 5,211,806
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EE&E

6. Fixed assets

R~ KB
REEETF EPNES
HMRIRE EHSAER REr
Furniture, EX Personal
fixtures and HAZERMHE Computer computers
leasehold Office application and 4Est
improvements equipment systems software Total
$ $ $ $ $
(D% Cost
"R2024F481H 2,553,900 185,333 1,560,900 4242147 8,542,280 At 1 April 2024
NE - - - 156,046 156,046 Additions
HE - (9,042) - (73,356) (82,398)  Disposals
1202538318 2,553,900 176,291 1,560,900 4,324,837 8,615,928 At 31 March 2025
Accumulated
RIRINE 4 depreciation/
amortisation
"R2024F 48160 170,260 105,561 130,075 1,646,698 2,052,594 At 1 April 2024
EEINE HH 510,780 33,585 390,225 992,298 1,926,888  Charge for the year
Written back on
HH & BB ] - (8,231) - (73,356) (81,587)  disposals
2025F3A31H 681,040 130,915 520,300 2,565,640 3,897,895 At 31 March 2025
IREFE Net book value
12025%F3831H 1,872,860 45,376 1,040,600 1,759,197 4,718,033 At 31 March 2025
(D Cost
152023F481H = 125,923 = 1,345,780 1471703 At1April 2023
pN=t 2,553,900 59,410 1,560,900 2,896,367 7,070,577 Additions
2024F3A31H 2,553,900 185,333 1,560,900 4242147 8,542,280 At 31 March 2024
Accumulated
RIRINE /44 depreciation/
amortisation
12023F481H - 79,149 = 1307521 1386,670  At1April 2023
FEINE HH 170,260 26,412 130,075 339177 665924  Charge for the year
1R2024F3831H 170,260 105,561 130,075 1,646,698 2,052,594 At 31 March 2024
R E Net book value
12024F3A31H 2,383,640 79,772 1,430,825 2,595,449 6,489,686 At 31 March 2024

Investor and Financial Education Council
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B E2025FE3831HIEEE (B8l © BT)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. B BAESFRAESEHE

RESGHRIE

Pl MRS RAEEBEREZES
MRIBEARBEGRW AR TRES
URFHEBNES - BRATRLER
] BNENEREENR o AIEAE
BREAEME  REERKSEAAQT

BEMRF -

8. EstERARHEMEMNRIEA
FESt 2 A I ELAOE (T SRS TR HATE = 18
A REPRRE R S o B
BBIEINE  REERRAREAT

BEEMRF -

9. B

FR2025F 38318 » REGH TG

REEENREEAR :

Amount due from/to the Securities and
Futures Commission

Amount due from/to the SFC represents funds
receivable/transferred from the SFC to support the
IFEC's operation. The balance is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and with no fixed repayment term. Due to the
short-term nature of the balance, the carrying amount is
considered to be the same as its fair value.

Accrued charges and other payables

Accrued charges and other payables are expected to
be settled within three months or on demand. Due
to the short-term nature of the balances, the carrying
amounts are considered to be the same as their fair
value.

Leases

As at 31 March 2025, the IFEC had a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability as follows:

2024
$

EREEE-PAEYR

1,176,188 Right-of-use asset — premise

HESRE
EN
IERE

Lease liability
469,381 Current
598,457 Non-current

1,067,838

(a) EE2025F3H31HIEEE » &
BARBHNAENEREEE o
BE2024F3/3VHIEEE » BF
BT —EBHNEEARIH
IEREERE — RE DB MM B LR
(B8EeRE) » IHERR1,628,5567TH

EREEE -
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(@) There was no addition of lease and right-of-use
asset for the year ended 31 March 2025. For the
year ended 31 March 2024, the IFEC entered a new
lease for establishing a digital hub — IFEC FinEd
Hub (Hub) and recognised right-of-use asset of
$1,628,556.



9. HEW

(b)

HE2025F383HIEEE » &%
BRBNBAEYXERAREEN
HEEL HA542 85670 (20244
452,3687T) - HESENFIEX
H%A30,61975 (20244 & 37,094
T NTBENIREINRBLES
500,0007% (20244 : 280,000
JT) ©
HE2025F3831HIEEERN B
R AR BN E FH%42,667,6007T
(20244 : 2,667,6007T) » MHIE
HNEMEEWRERANERAE
HFZH o

HE2025F 2024 FE3831H » %
SZENEEaBENEIGFENEIEE
s

9. Leases (continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the depreciation
expense for the right-of-use asset for premise was
$542,856 (2024: $452,368), interest expense on
lease liability was $30,619 (2024: $37,094) and total
cash outflow for the lease was $500,000 (2024:
$280,000).

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the expense
relating to a short-term lease was $2,667,600
(2024: $2,667,600) which was shown as premises
expenses in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

The remaining contractual maturities of the IFEC's
lease liability as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 are as
follow:

BHRITRRERE
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
— & MER
EREA HREA
After After
IREE —FR one year two years
Carrying st Within but within but within
amount Total one year two years five years
$ $ $ $ $
2025 2025
HEAE 598,457 612,000 524,000 88,000 - Lease liability
2024 2024
HEAR 1,067,838 1,112,000 500,000 524,000 88,000 Lease liability

10. {&1RE MR
BBRISTERENEE > RFEmEE
ERRE M AE NERERENE
REA o

10. Provision for reinstatement cost

Investor and Financial Education Council

Provision represents reinstatement cost to restore the
premise to a condition as stipulated in the relevant
lease agreement when the lease expires.
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Notes to the financial statements

B E2025FE3831HIEEE (B8l © BT)

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N. FAERRS 1. Related party transactions
KREEHERARERERISET A The IFEC has related party relationships with the SFC,
EH o BRT ERMBRENEMEDIEE the ultimate holding entity. In addition to the related
HEE R BFHIN > MEGEBUTEE parties relationship disclosed elsewhere in these
AR5 o financial statements, the IFEC has the following related

party transactions.
2025 2024
$ $
MEEEZNER Expenses paid to the SFC!
WA H 2,667,600 2,667,600  Premises expenses
BET NN E Accountancy and office administration
THXIRE 432,000 432,000 support fees
ANHE RN Human resources and training support
XRE 347,000 347,000 fees
BRI NS 720,000 720,000 IT support and maintenance fees
4,166,600 4,166,600
HEEENEEE Expenses paid by the SFC on behalf of
S ATHIBE 1,253,750 926,759  the IFEC
T ZHEREEREBETUAR L The expenses were charged in accordance with relevant
agreements.
TEETBAESERHUAKREETNES » All members of key management personnel are
HINEE R MIsE4RIEEE o directors of the IFEC, and their remuneration is
disclosed in note 4.
12. EFRIAMEE 12. Financial risk management

&éﬁfﬁ%%‘%_&qﬂ EEREEER
muiﬂﬁﬁ}—wm‘ cHREKREZEGETEN
KRR LA TTEHE » BLR AR
?%E’J%Eﬂlixi")\ ° 12L& b AT (el B
BEEHEE REGEERGEEL
JRLBR 7 HE > TR AR N2 B T XU BB
ERVFETE o BRI EIEHRE LF
MEEEHEIF A E o
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Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the
normal course of the IFEC’s business. The IFEC's
exposure to foreign exchange risk is minimal as
transactions and balances are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The IFEC has no interest bearing
assets or liabilities. The IFEC manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
risks associated and the management policies remain
unchanged from the prior year.
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Investor and Financial Education Council

Financial risk management (continued)

The IFEC's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank. As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the bank balances
are placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong rated

P-1 by Moody's or A-1 or above by Standard and Poor's.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented

by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position. In this regard, the IFEC's
credit risk is limited.

The IFEC's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2025 and 2024.

Parent and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the parent and ultimate
controlling party of the IFEC is the SFC, which is a
statutory body in Hong Kong and produces financial
statements available for public use.

Funding management

The funding of the IFEC is managed by its parent and
ultimate controlling party, the SFC, which has agreed to
provide continual financial support and adequate funds
to the IFEC to meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due. The IFEC is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements.
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